



Disclaimer

The information furnished herein by Comdata is proprietary and confidential and is intended for Comdata customers and/or Comdata internal use. It should not be duplicated, published, or disclosed in whole or in part without the prior written permission of Comdata.

Table of Contents

55 Basics
Expense Track Process Flow
Understand Expense Track User Roles7
Technical and System Requirements
Maintenance Schedule
Navigate Expense Track
Administrator Tasks
Set up Users
Set Up User Groups 22
Set Up User Permissions 25
Set Up User Email Notifications 27
Set Up Expense Types
Set up Item Categories
Define Expense Items
Set up Expense Itemizations 47
Set up Credit Card Imports
Set up Account Codes
Set up Self-Service Card Management73
Manage Expense Track
Correct Unmatched Comdata Mastercard Transactions
Assign Delegate Users
Approve Expense Reports
Approving Expense Reports
Reconcile Expense Reports
Generate Reports
Extract Expense Data

*If you're viewing this document on a computer, each chapter in the Table of Contents is a link. Click a link to go directly to a chapter. Revision Table

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Date	Version	Author	Notes
05/13/2016	v. 1.0	Steven Harris	Initial document created.
08/15/2016	v. 1.2	Steven Harris	Updated to reflect system updates and edits from associates.
09/16/2016	v. 1.3	Steven Harris	Updated information and corrected consistency errors.
02/03/2017	v. 1.4	Steven Harris	Added changes from Expense Track Release 16.4.
03/14/2017	v. 1.5	Steven Harris	Corrected several inconsistencies and text errors.
05/18/17	v. 1.6	Steven Harris	Added changes from Expense Track Release 17.1.
09/08/2017	v. 1.7	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 17.2 including: Setting up Self-Service Card Management Enhanced Discussion Notes Updated Data Extract Utility Added Reporting Details
11/02/2017	v. 1.8	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 17.3 including: Enhanced Delegate User Functionality Added Created By and Created for columns to Expense Draft grids Added Coding Note field to Split Account Code page
11/28/2017	v. 1.9	Steven Harris	Added Maintenance Schedule details to page 8.
12/18/2017	v 2.0	Steven Harris	 Updated pg 63: Old verbiage: Edit the expense item. New verbiage: Edit the expense item's account coding.
02/22/2018	v 2.1	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 17.4: Added enhanced Expense Report Approval details Added Managing External Account Codes Added Enhancements to Data Extracts
03/22/2018	v 2.5	Steven Harris	Updated Reimbursable field descriptions on pg 41.
05/22/2018	v 2.6	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 18.1, including: Added negative and over-allocation account code splits. Added enhancements for Dleegate users (grids and receipts). Added updated view of submitted expense reports.

Date	Version	Author	Notes		
08/23/2018	v 2.7	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 18.2, including: Added ability to disable manual expense entry for Comdata Mastercard users. Prevented ability for Comdata Mastercard users to edit imported transactions. Added recycle deleted receipt images feature. Required receipt image notes in Expense Track mobile app. Upgraded entire functionality and interface of Expense Track Mobile App. 		
11/01/2018	v 2.8	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 18.3 including: Added ability for Expense Approvers to add attachments to expense items during approval process. Added visible descriptions for accounting codes. Recycled receipts from declined transactions. Removed expense description requirement. Added ability to default accounting codes by Merchant Category Code (MCC). Updated interface and functionality for Data Extract Utility Tool. Added Edit button to Split Account Code page. 		
4/16/2019	v. 2.9	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 19.3 including: Added instructions for setting up user email notification preferences. Added instructions for using the Manage Transactions feature. 		
8/8/2019	v.3.0	Steven Harris	 Added changes from Expense Track Release 19.6 including: Added updates screen shot of approval page showing that expense approvers can edit descriptions. Added details on Save as default MCC button in accounts coding. Added screenshot of updated Pending Reconciliation page. Added details on Decline Reason for Approving and Reconciling expenses. 		

Expense Track

Welcome to Expense Track by Comdata

The Comdata Expense Track solution simplifies the process of generating, submitting, and approving expense reports. Designed specifically for use with Comdata Corporate credit cards, Expense Track allows you to manage all your expense reporting online, eliminating the need to keep records of paper receipts, simplifying report submission, and automating policy reinforcement. Furthermore, you can use Expense Track for reimbursable expenses.

Note that Expense Track is not designed to produce payment amounts to Comdata, but rather to automate the input of these expenses into your accounting systems or reimburse amounts to employees. Use Expense Track as your one source for all expense management purposes in your company.

Some key benefits of Expense Track include:

- Alleviating the need to keep record of paper receipts.
- An Expense Track mobile app for uploading receipts, entering line items, approving, and *coding expenses (only available for Expense Track Premium).
- Auto-image matching of receipts to card transactions through use of the mobile app (only available for Expense Track Premium).
- Faster reimbursement for reimbursable expenses.
- Improved policy enforcement with configurable rule validation.
- Configurable approval routing automation.
- Ability to access the application from any device with internet connection.
- Google maps integration for determining miles travelled and reimbursement due.

Note: Expense Track is available in a Basic and Premium package. Some features may not be available depending on the package you have purchased.

Basics

Expense Track Process Flow

The Expense Track process follows two paths: reimbursable expenses and Comdata Corporate Mastercard expenses. The diagram below visualizes both paths.

- **Reimbursable Expenses:** Reimbursable expenses are any expenses incurred without a Comdata Corporate credit card that can be reimbursed. These transactions can be captured by entering expense reports and submitting them for approval through automated routing. If approved and reconciled, the transaction will be exported to be processed through the accounting system.
- **Comdata Corporate Mastercard:** All transactions performed with a Comdata Corporate • Mastercard automatically import into Expense Track for processing. From here, you can edit the report as needed and send it for approval and reconciliation. If approved and reconciled, the expense returns to your company's accounting software system.



Track

by COMDATA

It is important to understand that there are no specific user roles in Expense Track as the system is heavily permissions based. Each feature has an associated permission that must be granted to an individual user or user group, otherwise it is not accessible.

Administrators will typically have access to all features within Expense Track while users can be granted access to a wide number of features, depending on what the Administrator deems their responsibilities. For example, if an Administrator needs an Accounts Payable associate to reconcile expenses, they would set them up as a user and grant their user profile permission to access only expense reconciliation features. Furthermore, if an Administrator needs several Accounts Payable associates to review expense reports, they can set up a user group with permissions to expense reconciliation features. Then, they can assign each associate to that user group.

To break it down further, see below for a high level understanding of Administrator responsibilities versus some of the responsibilities that can be assigned to users.

Administrator:

- Set up Users and User Groups
- Set up Expense Types and Items
- Grant Permissions
- Run Reports
- Create and Schedule Reports
- Configure System Settings
- Manage User Access
- Build Approval and Reconciliation Workflow
- Export Expense Data to Accounting Systems

User:

- Create Expense Reports
- Approve Expense Reports
- Reconcile Expense Reports
- Access Tools such as the Expense Dashboard, Itineraries, and Mileage Calculation

ExpenseTra

- Use the mobile app for receipt capture, expense reporting, and approvals
- Substitute Approvers
- Split Account Coding

This is just a sample of some of the responsibilities between Administrators and users. Continue reading the guide for in-depth information.

Technical and System Requirements

See the following system requirements to take full advantage of the Expense Track website.

Preferred Browsers

For optimal experience, please use the following browsers:

Browser	Version	Comments
Internet Explorer	11.0, most recent version	Make sure to install all recommended Microsoft software updates.
Mozilla Firefox	Most recent version	Comdata makes every effort to test and support the most recent versions of Mozilla Firefox.
Google Chrome	Most recent version	Google Chrome automatically applies updates. Comdata makes every effort to test and support the most recent versions of Google Chrome.

Screen Resolution Recommendations

Expense Track is designed to be responsive with most screen resolutions. Expense Track is thoroughly tested using a combination of browsers and multiple screen resolutions in order to provide users the best possible experience. The following screen resolutions are recommended:

Screen Resolutions in Pixels					
1024 x 768	1366 x 768				
1280 x 800	1600 x 900				
1280 x 1024	1920 x 1080				
1920 x 1200					

Note: A minimum screen resolution of 1024 x 768 is recommended. Screen resolutions smaller than 1024 x 768 might not properly display certain Expense Track pages. Also note, for all browser, you must enable JavaScript and cookies.

Other Technical Requirements

Area	Version
Adobe Flash Player	11.0, 12.0, 13.0, 14.1, or later
Adobe Reader	10,0, 11.0, or later
Microsoft Excel	2003, 2007, 2010, 2013, 2016

Maintenance Schedule

Expense Track is available a minimum of 99.5% of the time, excluding regular scheduled maintenance. See below for details on Expense Track maintenance releases:

- **Major Releases:** Major releases to Expense Track (example: 12.0, 14.0, etc.) occur annually (summer/fall) and include significant feature and functionality advances such as new user interface designs, extensive workflow improvements, and new modules or product offerings. Each time a major release is ready to deploy, Expense Track administrators will receive an email notification along with a release notes document detailing each change in the release. The release notes and comprehensive user and administrator guides are updated with each release and made available via the Help option in Expense Track.
- Minor Releases: Minor releases to Expense Track (examples: 12.4, 14.1, etc.) occur every 2-3 months after a major release and include feature or functionality enhancements along with defect fixes. Each time a minor release is ready to deploy, Expense Track administrators will receive an email notification along with a release notes document detailing each change in the release. The release notes and comprehensive user and administrator guides are updated with each release and made available via the Help option in Expense Track.
- **Maintenance Packs:** Maintenance packs are groupings of critical and high priority patches that are released every 3 weeks on a Monday.
- **Patches:** In rare instances, a critical patch may need to be deployed outside of the releases mentioned above.

Note: Releases to Expense Track occur during a scheduled maintenance window of 12:00am - 4:00am EST/EDT.

Navigate Expense Track

Log In

As an Administrator, you will receive your login credentials and the Expense Track URL through email from Comdata. Once you receive your login credentials, follow the steps below the successfully log in and navigate the Expense Track web portal.

- 1. Launch your web browser (Expense Track is most compatible with Internet Explorer v10 or higher, Chrome, and Mozilla Firefox).
- 2. Enter the Expense Track URL (<u>expensetrack.com</u>) in your browser's address bar and then press **Enter** on your keyboard.
- 3. Enter your login credentials (username and password) and then click Log In.

	Username					
	Password					
Forgot Password Log In						

If accessing the web site via mobile browser, the page will open to the full site login page.

(see image on next page)



Note: If you fail to log in after four attempts, the web portal will lock you out. However, you can regain access through one of the following methods:

- Wait 15 minutes and you can make another attempt.
- Clear your browser's cache.
- If you are using the Google Chrome web browser, use "Incognito Mode" located under Chrome's tools drop-down menu.
- Click **Forgot Password** to request a temporary password. You will need to change the temporary password upon logging in.

Navigate the Expense Track Home Page

The Expense Track home page contains quick access to key features, such as your expense reports, open tasks, and statuses of expenses. It is important to note that the image below is from an Administrator view. It is noted in the table below which features are available for Administrators only.

Note: Expense Track times out after 20 minutes of inactivity. You will receive a 5-minute warning before the system completely logs you out.

ExpenseTrack	M	2	 Hannah Lawson 👻
< Expense Report			>
Expense Report			×
Expense Drafts Apr 2017			
User Logins in Past 6 months 3 choose Widget Tasks 4 Status	F	5)	
40 Approval Expense Reports to Approve 93 Items			
35 Counting 10 Expense Reports to be Reconciled 2 Exper			
25 CF			
Feb/17 Nar/17 Apr/17 Jun/17 Jul/17 Months			

Section	Description					
1. Main Menu	Contains drop-down menus to all of Expense Track's features.					
2. Quick Access Carousel	Provides quick access to your draft expense reports.					
3. User Logins Widget	Allows you to view user login activity for up to 6 months.					
4. Tasks Displays your open items, such as unreconciled expenses or items that require approval.						
5. Status	Displays the status of your opened expenses. For example, if you have expense reports that require approval, "Expense Reports in Approval" displays with the total number.					

Navigate the Main Menu

The Expense Track main menu contains links to all of the features you will use in Expense Track.

♠	Travel & Expense 👻	Reports 👻	Spend Manager 👻	‡ -	N	8		Hannah Lawson 👻
---	--------------------	-----------	-----------------	------------	----------	---	--	-----------------

Menu	Description				
Home 🕇	Returns you to the Expense Track home page from any page in the web portal.				
	The Travel & Expenses drop-down contains three groups of links:				
Travel & Expenses	• Manage/Search: Expense Dashboard, Expense Drafts, Search Expenses, My Cards, Manage Card Service Requests, Expense Import Summary by Batch, Expense Import Summary by User				
	Filters: Open Expenses, Old Expenses, All Expenses				
	• Approval/Reconcile: Pending Approvals, Approval History, Pending Reconciliation, Reconciled Expenses, Card Service Request Approvals				
Spend Manager	Provides access to Ad-Hoc Reporting where you can run standard, preformatted reports.				
Settings Icon 🍄 🗸	Offers access to all Administrator-level tools.				
Speed Links 🗖	Offers the ability to save quick links for your frequently used features. For example, if you want quick access to the Expense Dashboard, type it in the field and click Add . A quick link will be created to the Expense Dashboard that you can access from any page in Expense Track.				
Messages	Displays all system- and user-generated notifications.				
My Cards	Displays only if a Comdata Corporate Mastercard is assigned to you. Click My Cards to view your card's balance, pending and declined transactions, or request a credit limit increase or replacement card.				
User Name Drop- down Menu	Provides access to details on the version of Expense Track, your user profile, a Help option, and the ability to set your in and out of office status.				

Administrator Tasks

As an Expense Track Administrator, you are responsible for setting up and configuring Expense Track to be used by your company. This includes several tasks such as setting up expense types, expense items, approval rules, adding and managing users, applying permissions to users, and customizing coding types and field labels. In addition, you can monitor and manage your user's activity within the site by viewing expense report drafts and approving and/or reconciling submitted expense reports.

Although you can set up other users with your same Administrator access privileges, it is recommended Admin-level permissions be limited. This section explains and demonstrates how to configure Expense Track for your company's expense reporting needs and manage the system on an ongoing basis.

Click a link below for more details:

- <u>Set up Expense Track</u>
- Manage Expense Track
- Run Reports

Before your company can utilize Expense Track, you are required to complete certain set up procedures. This involves, but is not limited to, setting up individual users and granting them access to different features in Expense Track. Use these set up tasks to customize Expense Track to meet your company's expense reporting standards and so that your users can navigate and perform actions in the system with no issue.

See below for a list of setup-related tasks:

- Set Up Users
- Set Up User Groups
- Set Up Permissions
- <u>Set Up User Email Notifications</u>
- <u>Set Up Expense Types</u>
- <u>Set Up Item Categories</u>
- Define Expense Items
- Set Up Expense Itemizations
- Set Up Credit Card Imports
- Set Up Account Codes
- <u>Set Up Self-Service Card Management</u>

Set up Users

Each employee in your company that will use Expense Track must be set up as a user. This includes all of their attributes such as their login credentials and contact information. Follow the steps below to set up individual users.

Add Users

1. On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon (♥→) > Users > Users.



2. On the Users page, click Add.



3. Complete each field as necessary. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk. Click **Add User** when finished to set up the user's profile. See field descriptions on the next page.

Add User	
First Name *	
Last Name *	
Initials	
Company ID	
NT Domain Login	
Manager	٩
Accounting Code	
Display Name *	
Login Name *	
Password *	
Password Verification *	
Generate Random Password Email Login Information to User	© Yes ⊛ No © Yes ⊛ No
Require New Password on First Login	
Account Expires On	
Allowed No. of Uses	-1
Phone No.	
Fax No.	
Email	
Spending Categories	
Spending Limits	
Receiving Tolerance	0.00
Bill to Location *	
Ship to Location *	Comdata
Expense Location *	Comdata
Related Vendor Portal Vendor	٩
Groups	*Accounts Payable *Auditor *Executive Admins *Expense Admins
	*Executive Admins *Expense Admins
Notify Via	Internal Messaging
Language	English (United States)
Exclude User from Rule Escalations	© Yes ⊛ No
Exclude User from Password Expiration	Yes No
Allow Access to Expense Manager	Yes O No
	Add User Clear Entries

Field Name	Description
First Name	User's first name
Last Name	User's last name
Initials	User's two-letter initial.
Company ID	User's employee number.
NT Domain Login	Valid only for use with Single Sign On.
Manager	Use the Look Up icon () to locate the user's manager, if applicable. Required if the user will be set up for Approval routing and escalation rules.
Accounting Code	User's specific default coding (example: 1001-7520-1115).
Display Name	User's full name as it will display in Expense Track.
Login Name	Username required at login (user's email address).
Password	User's password required at login.
Password Verification	Reenter the password.
Generate Random Password	Generate a random password for the user to enter on their first login.
Email Login Information to User	Emails the user their login credentials.
Require New Password on First Login	Require the user to change their password the first time they log in.
Account Expires On	Set the user's account to expire on a certain date.
Allowed No. of Uses	The number of times the user can log in to Expense Track. Set this field to -1 for unlimited access.
Phone No.	Enter the user's 10-digit phone number, mobile or landline.
Fax No.	Enter the user's 10-digit fax number.
Email	User's email address
Spending Categories	N/A

Expense Track

Field Name	Description	
Spending Limits	The total amount the user can spend or approve.	
Receiving Tolerance	N/A	
Bill to Location	N/A	
Ship to Location	N/A	
Expense Location	User's default location	
Related Vendor Portal Vendor	N/A	
Groups	Assign the user to a user group(s).	
Notify Via	 Select how the user will receive Expense Track notifications: Internal Messaging: Messages tab on the main menu. Email: The email address associated to the user's profile. Both: Internal Messaging and Email. 	
Language	 Current languages include: English (United States) Francais (Canada) Francais (France) Portugues (Portugal) 	
Exclude User from Rule Escalations	Allow or disallow the user to escalate rules.	
Exclude User from Password Expiration	Allow or disallow the user's password to expire.	
Allow Access to Expense Manager	Allow or disallow the user to log in to Expense Track.	

Other Users Page Features

The Users page offers many other features for managing users. Select a user from the User's List and then select one of the following options. If you have a large list of users, use the **Filter** drop-down to filter the list by enabled or disabled users or a user group. Users can also be imported if you have several that need to be created at one time.

All A B C D E F G H I J K L I Filter Show All Image: Comparison of the second	M N O	PQRSTU	v w	ХҮ	ſ
Able, Jon (E, Comdata)	_	Add			
Access, Approver Only (E, Comdata) Adele, Robert (E, Comdata)		Edit			
Adeie, Robert (E, Condata) Administrator, Admin (E, Comdata)		Edit			
Administrator, Test Admin2 (E, Comdata)	_	Attributes			
* AlphaNumeric, Test (E, Comdata) Andelson, Lucy (E, Comdata)		Disable			
Andelson, Eucy (E, Comdata) Apple, Becky (E, Comdata)		Disable			
Approver 1, Test (E, Comdata)		Enable			
Ash, Tia (E, Comdata) Bard, Cary (E, Comdata)		Consultant.			
Black, Jim (E, Comdata)		Copy User			
Blase, Cammie (E, Comdata)		Grant Access			
Bonsai, Kelvon (E, Comdata)					
Boston, Cammie (E, Comdata) Breen, Sabrina (E, Comdata)		Remove Access			
Buston, Sam (E, Comdata)		Generate Token			
Camerale, James (E, Comdata)					
Campbell, Zach (E, Comdata) Carrison, Karen (E, Comdata)		Set In/Out Status			
Cartson, Rachelle (E, Comdata)	-	Substitute Approval Routes			
Showing 95 item(s)		Reset Password			
		Generate Registration Key			
Grant Selected Users Access to:					
Available Modules Expense 👻					

Function	Description	
Edit	Edit an existing user's profile.	
Attributes	View the user's profile and make changes to their password or contact information.	
Disable	Disable the user's account, preventing them from logging into Expense Track.	
Enable	Enable a disabled user's account, allowing them to log in to Expense Track.	
Copy User	Copy an existing user's profile to create a new user.	

Function	Description
Grant Access	Grant the user access to the module selected in the Available Modules drop-down (only Expense is available for Expense Track).
Remove Access	Remove the user's access from the selected module in the Available Modules drop-down (only Expense is available for Expense Track). This option would prevent the user from logging into Expense Track.
Generate Token	N/A
Set In/Out StatusSet the user's In Office and Out of Office status. If Out of Office, yoSet In/Out Statusspecify the amount of time they will be out, return date, and a sub perform their duties.	
Substitute Approval Routes	Select a substitute expense Approver if the user's initial Approver (manager) is not available.
Reset Password	Generate and email a random password to the user.
Generate Registration KeyAllows you to create a registration key that lets users self-register. select this option, you or another Administrative user will need to the request through the Users Pending Approval page (Settings ico > Users > Users Pending Approval).	

Set Up User Groups

User groups are similar to a user role where permissions and accesses can be assigned to a group and any user added to the group will inherit those permissions. Define as many user groups as necessary and customize them to your liking. For example, if you have several users that are responsible for approving expenses, you can create a group titled Expense Approvers. Some standards groups include Cardholder, Approver, Coder, and Administrator. However, you can customize the names and tasks of groups to your discretion. Follow the steps below to add user groups.

Add User Groups

1. On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon (^(*) -) > Users > Groups.



2. On the User Groups page, click Add.

Filter	Keywords	Submit	
	nts Payable [2278,]	A	Add
	r [2282,] ive Admins [2283,]		Edit
	se Admins [2281,] se Approvers [2280,]		Delete
*Expen	se User [2279,] ng - All Access [2286,]		Spend Limits
*Trainir	ig - All Access [2200,]		Reset
*Trainir			I COCC
*Trainir			nesee

3. On the Add Group page, complete each field with the attributes of the user group. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk. Click **Add Group** when finished. The new user group will display on the previous page.

Group Name *			
Group Description			
Group e-mail			
Add Members	Add Group	Clear Entries	م ۵

Field Name	Description	
	Enter the User Group's full name as it will display in the web portal. Example: Expense Approvers, Executive Administrators, etc.	
Group Name It is recommended the group name be prefixed with a special character an asterisk (*). This practice keeps the user groups arranged together in downs and distinguishes them from user names.		
Group Description	Enter a description of the user group. For example, if the user group name is Expense Approver, the description could be, "users are allowed to only review and approve expenses".	
Group e-mail	Enter an email address that can be used for all members (users) in the User Group.	
Add Members	Add existing users to the user group. If you don't know the user's name, use the Look Up () icon to search for them.	

Other User Groups Page Features

The User Groups page offers other features for managing user groups. Select a user group from the Groups List and then click one of the following options. If you have a large list of user groups, use the **Filter** field to quickly search for them.

iroups List		
Filter Keywords	Submit	
*Accounts Payable [2278,]	^	Add
*Auditor [2282,] *Executive Admins [2283,]		Edit
*Expense Admins [2281,] *Expense Approvers [2280,]		Delete
*Expense User [2279,] *Training - All Access [2286,]		Spend Limits
"Training - All Access [2200,]		Reset
	1	
	-	
Showing 7 item(s)		

Function	Description	
Edit	Edit details on an existing group, such as the group name, description, email, and members (users).	
Delete	Permanently delete the group. If any users are added to the group, they will lose all accesses and permissions associated to the group.	
Spend Limits	Set up or change spending limits. Accounting codes must be set up to use this feature.	
Reset	Clears all details on the user group.	

Permissions allow users and user groups to access different features and perform certain tasks within Expense Track. For example, if you want to grant an Expense Approver user group access to run reports, you would select permission **23** - **Run Reports**. Follow the steps below to assign permissions to users and user groups.

ExpenseTra

Note: It is recommended to set permissions at the user group level. If you apply permissions to a user group, each user assigned to that group will inherit those permissions.

Assign Permissions

1. On the Expense Track main menu, select the **Settings icon** (*) > **Users** > **Permissions**.



 This opens the Manage User/Group Permissions page. At the top of the page, select the User/Group drop-down to choose a user or a user group. Select the Permissions Groups drop-down to choose a permission group and then click Retrieve Permissions.

Note: When you first access the Manage User/Group Permissions page, the **User/Group** dropdown defaults to users and groups that begin with "A". Click the **All** button at the top of the page to fill the **User/Group** drop-down with all users and user groups.

Manage User/Group Permissions:				
Filt	er All A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P	Q R S T U V W X Y Z		
User/Group *	Administrator Admin (Comdata)			
Permission Groups	General 🔻			
View User Profile	Select permissions and click the Save Permissions Button	Retrieve Permissions		
View Profile	Save Permissions Clear All	Retrieve Permissions		

Note that permissions are separated into the 10 groups, but only the following are valid for Expense Track: General, Base Data, Approval, Travel and Expense, and Security. Review the permissions in each group to see which ones to apply to your users or user groups.

Note: If you are setting up another Administrator user, ensure all permissions under Travel and Expense are selected except permission **2011 - Restrict to Own Expenses**.

3. The permissions for your selected permission group display and each permission assigned to your selected user or user group will be checked. If your selected user is assigned to a user group, the word "Inherited" displays next to each of the user group's permissions.

Select the check box next to each permission to apply it to the selected user or user group. Then, click **Save Permissions**. Continue this process for as many users or user groups as necessary. Click **Clear All** to uncheck all selected check boxes.

Note: If you change a user's permissions, they must log out and log back into Expense Track for the changes to take effect.

	<mark>มp Permissions: Approver 1 Test</mark> Iter AII A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O I	P Q R S T U V W X Y Z			
User/Group *	Approver 1 Test (Comdata)				
Permission Groups	General 🔻				
View User Profile	Select permissions and click the Save Permissions Button	Retrieve Permissions			
View Profile	Save Permissions Clear All	Retrieve Permissions			
	General Permissions				
Access System	(0) Inherited				
Change Passwo	rd (12) Inherited				
Send Broadcast	Send Broadcast Messages (17)				
Change In/Out	Change In/Out Status (74) Inherited				
Send Faxes to A	Send Faxes to Any Number (32)				
Send Faxes to C	omdata Users (31)				
📄 Run Reports (2	Run Reports (23)				
View All Directo	View All Directories (28)				
View Users (70)				
View Locations	(68)				
 View Manufact 					
View Purchasin	View Purchasing Vendors (71)				
View Selected F	rojects (137)				
Can Manage We	Achievements (200)				
	Save Permissions Clear All				

Set Up User Email Notifications

Your users can receive email notifications for a variety of expense-related activities in Expense Track, such as expense report approvals or spend limit increase approvals. These notifications alleviate the need for users to log in to check on the status of activities and allows you to prevent users from receiving unnecessary notifications.

Note: Permission 4208 – Can Manage Notification Settings for All Users must be enabled to access this feature.

1. Select the Admin gear icon (^(*) -) > Users > Notifications.



The Manage Notifications page displays all possible notifications your users can receive. Notifications are segmented into five groups: **Receipt**, **Approval**, **Reconciliation**, **Card Service Requests**, **Imports and Exports**.

(see image on next page)

Expense Track

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Receipt			Disable Al
	Receipt Successfully	Sent to a user who has emailed in a receipt to say that it has been	Show Advanced
	Processed	successfully received and is ready to be attached to a report.	
	Receipts Overdue for	Sent to the user who owns the receipt when the receipt has been	Show Advance
	Matching	sitting in the queue for a certain period, as specified by system	
		setting 2301 (number of days before receipt reminder is sent).	
	Receipts to be Purged	Sent to a user with receipts in the receipt queue that are about to	Show Advance
		be removed from the queue, based on the amount of time they've	
		waited in there. Time frame is set in system setting 2205	
		(maximum number of days to keep expense receipts not attached	
		to expense reports).	
Approva	I		Disable A
	Expense Report Requires	Sent to the approver when an expense report has been submitted	Show Advance
	Approval	for approval.	
	Expense Report Approved	Sent to a user when their expense report has been processed by	Show Advance
		one approver.	
Reconcil	iation		Disable A
	Expense Report Partially	Sent to a user when their expense report has been partially	Show Advance
	Released	released through reconciliation.	
	Expense Report Fully	Sent to a user when their expense report has been fully released	Show Advance
	Released	through reconciliation.	
Card Ser	vice Requests		Disable A
	Request Spend Limit	Sent to users responsible for approving spend limit increase	Show Advance
	Increase	requests for credit cards.	
	Request Replacement Card	Sent to users responsible for approving replacement card requests	Show Advance
		for credit cards.	
Imports	and Exports		Disable Al
	Credit Card Import	Sent to a user whose expense transactions have been imported.	Show Advance
	Notification		
		Cancel Save Notifications Preferences	

(continued on next page)

- **2.** You can perform the following functions with this page:
 - Click **Disable All** to disable all notifications in a segment for all users.

Receipt			Disable All
	Receipt Successfully Processed	Sent to a user who has emailed in a receipt to say that it has been successfully	Show Advanced
		received and is ready to be attached to a report.	
	Receipts Overdue for Matching	Sent to the user who owns the receipt when the receipt has been sitting in the	Show Advanced
		queue for a certain period, as specified by system setting 2301 (number of days	
		before receipt reminder is sent).	
	Receipts to be Purged	Sent to a user with receipts in the receipt queue that are about to be removed	Show Advanced
		from the queue, based on the amount of time they've waited in there. Time frame	
		is set in system setting 2205 (maximum number of days to keep expense receipts	
		not attached to expense reports).	

Click **Enable All** to re-enable all notifications in a segment for all users.

Receipt			Enable All
	Receipt Successfully	Sent to a user who has emailed in a receipt to say that it has been	Show Advanced
	Processed	successfully received and is ready to be attached to a report.	
	Receipts Overdue for	Sent to the user who owns the receipt when the receipt has been	Show Advanced
	Matching	sitting in the queue for a certain period, as specified by system	
		setting 2301 (number of days before receipt reminder is sent).	
	Receipts to be Purged	Sent to a user with receipts in the receipt queue that are about to	Show Advanced
		be removed from the queue, based on the amount of time they've	
		waited in there. Time frame is set in system setting 2205	
		(maximum number of days to keep expense receipts not attached	
		to expense reports).	

 Click Show Advanced to open a drop-down for selecting individual users to enable or disable from receiving the notification. If the notification is enabled for all users (toggle button on), you can hide the notification from users of your choosing. If the notification is disabled for all users (toggle button off), you can enable the notification for users of your choosing.

Note: User groups display in the drop-down, but selecting the group does not apply the notification setting to the group, but rather to each individual group member. Be sure to revisit notification setting exceptions if users are added or removed from a group.

(see image next page)

Receipt			Disable Al
Receipt Successfully		Sent to a user who has emailed in a receipt to say that it has been	Show Advanced
	Processed	successfully received and is ready to be attached to a report.	
	Receipts Overdue for	Sent to the user who owns the receipt when the receipt has been	Hide Advanced
	Matching	sitting in the queue for a certain period, as specified by system	
		setting 2301 (number of days before receipt reminder is sent).	
Comd	ata User 🗙 SMITH, TODD 🗙	X Y	
Comd	ata User 🗙 SMITH, TODD 🗙	× -	
	Receipts to be Purged	Sent to a user with receipts in the receipt queue that are about to	Hide Advanced
		be removed from the queue, based on the amount of time they've	
		be removed normale queue, based on the amount of time they ve	
		waited in there. Time frame is set in system setting 2205	
		waited in there. Time frame is set in system setting 2205	

3. Once you've made your desired changes, click **Save Notifications Preferences** at the bottom of the page. Your users will now receive only the notifications you have configured.

Card Service Requests Disable All				
	Request Spend Limit	Sent to users responsible for approving spend limit increase Show Advance		
	Increase	requests for credit cards.		
	Request Replacement Card	Sent to users responsible for approving replacement card requests	Show Advanced	
		for credit cards.		
Imports and Exports			Disable All	
	Credit Card Import	Sent to a user whose expense transactions have been imported. Show Advanced		
	Notification			
		Cancel Save Notifications Preferences		

The information defined for the expense type determines the fields that are available when creating an expense line item. At least one expense type must be defined before moving ahead in the setup process. Expense types also enable categorization of expense items when they are requested. Expense items are linked to the expense types. Multiple expense items can be associated with an expense type. Expense Types can also be imported when you have several to add at once. Follow the steps below to add expense types.

Add Expense Types

 On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon ([↔] ·) > Expense > Expense Types.



2. On the Expense Types page, click Add.

Expense Type List				
Filter	Keywords	Submit		
	iness Services,		*	Add
	252 Dues & Subscriptions, 151 Equipment Service,			Edit
	149 Fuel,			Delete
250 Lice 249 Me	148 Job Materials, 250 License & Registrations, 249 Meals,			Reset
	152 Mileage, 150 Parts,			
153 Travel,				
248 Unr	matched,		Ŧ	
Showing	11 item(s)			

 Complete all necessary fields on the Add/Edit Expense Type page. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk. Each field completed on this page will display on the Create an Expense Report page. Click Add/Edit Expense Type when finish.

Note: Require from City and Require to City default to No if Mileage is set to Yes/Yes and Calculate.

Add/Edit Expense Ty	pe		
Expense Type *			
Vendor Label			
Quantity Label			
Amount Label			
Description Label			
Require Date Range	🖲 Yes 💿 No		
Require from City	🖲 Yes 💿 No		
Require to City	🖲 Yes 🔘 No		
Require Vendor Entry	🖲 Yes 🔘 No		
Allow Amount Edit	🖲 Yes 🔘 No		
Allow Quantity Edit	🖲 Yes 🔘 No		
Accounts Coding Type			•
Cost Formula			
Quantity Formula			
Mileage	No		•
Itinerary Item Type	None		Ŧ
Action		Add/Edit Expense Type	Clear Entries

Field	Description
Expense Type	The name of the expense. For example, Hotel Airfare, Mileage, etc.
Vendor Label	The name of the label that represents the merchant or vendor field for the expense item. For example, Hotel Name, Airline, etc. Note: If left blank, the label Vendor is used.

Field	Description
Quantity Label	Label for the field that is used to specify the expense type's quantity. Example: # of Tickets
Amount Label	Label for the field that is used to specify the amount the user must enter for each quantity entered. For example: Amount Per Ticket.
Description Label	Label for the description for the expense. Example: Purpose, Attendees, etc.
Require Date Range	Yes: From and To date fields display on the Create Expense Report page No: One Date field displays on the Create Expense Report page.
Require from City/Require to City	Yes: From and To city fields display on the Create Expense Report page No: One City/State field displays on the Create Expense Report page.
Require Vendor Entry	Yes: User is required to specify a vendor when entering an expense No: No vendor specification required.
Allow Amount Edit	Yes: User can edit values in the Amount field on the Create Expense Report page. No: User is not allowed to enter a value in the Amount field. Ideal for mileage type expenses, where the amount per mile is reimbursed at a fixed value. The actual value is set up at the expense item level.
Allow Quantity Edit	Yes: User is allowed to edit the quantity entered on the Create Expense Report page. No: User cannot edit quantity values entered on the Create Expense Report page and the field defaults to 1.
Accounts Coding Type	Select a default accounts coding type for this expense type. When selected, all expense items associated to this expense type will default to your selected accounts coding type and any global accounts coding type defaults will be ignored. This includes credit card imports. However, if an accounts coding type is set up at the expense item level, this setting will be ignored and the expense item's accounts coding type will apply. Note: This field displays only if Split Entry Field Format is selected for system setting 829 - Accounting Code Selection Type .

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field	Description
Cost Formula	The formula used to calculate the cost, if applicable.
Quantity Formula	The formula used for the quantity calculation, if applicable.
Mileage	 Yes: Displays the Calculate Miles button on the Add/Edit Expense Item page. However, if the user does not click the button, the miles will always calculate as 0. No: Mileage calculation does not display. Yes and Auto Calculate: Miles are calculated even if the user does not click the Calculate Miles button.
Itinerary Item Type	Associates the expensed type with a Triplt expense type. For example, if Airline is an option and selected, the details on this expense type will be associated to al Tripit airline expenses.

Other Expense Type Page Features

The Expense Type page offers other features for managing expense types. Select an expense type and then click one of the options to the right of the Expense Type List. If you have a large amount of expense types, use the **Filter** field to quickly find one.

xper	nse Type List		
Filter	Keywords	Submit	
	iness Services,		Add
	252 Dues & Subscriptions, 151 Equipment Service,		Edit
149 Fuel, 148 Job Materials,			Delete
250 License & Registrations, 249 Meals,			Reset
152 Mile			
150 Par	150 Parts,		
153 Travel,			
248 Unr	matched,	-	
5howing	11 item(s)		

Field	Description
Edit	Edit the attributes on an existing expense type.
Delete	Remove an expense type from the web portal. Note that expense types with associated expense items cannot be deleted.
Reset	Clear the attributes on an expense type.

Set up Item Categories

Item Categories enable expense items to be grouped together. Numerous Expense Track features are based on these categorizations. Item categories are required when adding items to the catalog. Item Categories are necessary for three reasons:

- Accounting: If there are items that have different general ledger accounts, they should be separated and the appropriate accounting code assigned.
- **Control:** If control over what parts of the catalog, users or groups of users can see, then they can be separated into separate categories and create rules to exclude them from users. This may create a situation where multiple categories carry the same accounting code, and this is completely acceptable.
- **Reporting:** If people monitoring item usage have specific reporting needs, then categories can accommodate the views they require. Again, this may duplicate accounting codes. It may also require additional rules to be created to control proper access to items in the catalog.

Follow the steps below to set up item categories.

 On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon ([☆] ·) > Catalog > Item Categories.


2. On the Item Categories page, click Add. If you want to edit an existing item category, select it from the Category List and then click Edit.

Note: The number in the brackets is the accounting code and the number in the parenthesis is the category ID assigned by the system.

dI	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	К	L	М	Ν	0	Ρ	Q	R	S	т	U	۷	W	Х	Y	
lter	Keyword	ds		9	Submit																				
2016 N	Vileage [*			Add										
Client	Meals [7	03101(1	4601)																						
Expen	Meals [7 ses [](14	598)		1602)											Edit										
Expen		598)		4602)										1	Delete										
Expen	ses [](14	598)		4602)											Delete	unts									
Expen	ses [](14	598)		4602)										Catego	Delete	unts									
Expen	ses [](14	598)		4602)										Catego	Delete ory Acco	unts									

3. Complete each field on the Add (or Edit) Category page. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk. Click **Add Category** when finished. *See field descriptions on the next page.*

Add Category	
Parent Category	
Category Name *	
Accounting Code	
Commodity References	
Default Off Catalog Item Type *	Product •
Inventory/Asset Receiving Unit	٣
Enable Off Catalog Item Creation Notification *	No Ves
Hide on Off Catalog Item Order Request *	No Ves
Auto Receive during Invoice *	🖲 No 💿 Yes
	Add Category Clear Entries

(see field descriptions on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field	Description
Parent Category	Select a parent category for this category, if applicable.
Category Name	Enter the name assigned to this category. Example: Stationery
Accounting Code	Enter the appropriate accounting code for this category. This code may be used by your accounting system. Example: ACC
Commodity References	N/A
Default Off Catalog Item Type	N/A
Inventory/Asset Receiving Unit	N/A
Enable Off Catalog Item Creation Notification	N/A
Hide on Off Catalog Item Order Request	N/A
Auto Receive during Invoice	N/A

Expense Track

Other Item Category Features

The Item Category page offers other features for managing item categories. Select an item category from the Category List and then click one of the following options.

Note: If you have a large list of item categories, use the **Filter** field at the top of the page to search for one. Or, click the **All** button at the top of the page to display all of your item categories.



Button	Description
Edit	Edit an existing item category.
Delete	Delete an existing item category. Note: If an expense item is associated to an item category, it cannot be deleted.
Category Accounts	Assign more than one account code to an item category. See the next section for more information.
Reset	Clears all details on an item category and resets it to its defaults.

Set up Category Accounts

Category accounts provide the ability to assign more than one account code per category. This could be necessary if multiple codes can be assigned to one item category based on the user (specifically based on the location of the user). This might be the case if there is a "generic" category code if they are buying a product for a corporate location and a different account code when they are buying that item for another location.

This is used during the creation of a request if the user logged in has the selected location as their ship-to location in their user profile. When this user creates a request, the "default" account code in the category profile is not used when that user orders an item from the selected category. Instead, the code specified below is used. For example, Laura in San Francisco orders a pen that is for the category "Office Supplies." The account code assigned to that category for that location is displayed (for example, SanFran2222). However, if a user from a location other than San Francisco orders this pen, then Expense Track uses the default category code (for example, O341).

- Category List All A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U V W X Y Z Filter Keywords Submit 2016 Mileage (70309)(1403) Client Meals (7030)(1403) Expenses [(14598) Postage & Shipping [80410](14602) Category Accounts Reset Showing 4 Item(s)
- 1. Select an item category from the Category List. Then, click the **Category Accounts** button.

Categories Accou	unts Setup	
Category *	2016 Mileage	Ŧ
Locations *		٩
Account *		
	Categories Accounts Setup	Clear Entries

Field	Description
Category	Select the item category for setup. Ensure this is the item category selected on the Item Categories page.
Locations	Use the Look up icon () to select the location(s) to associate the item category.
Account	Enter the appropriate accounting code for this category and location combination. This code may be used by your accounting system. The account code can be alpha numeric (letters, numbers, or dashes). Example: ACC

3. The category account code is added. To delete the code, click the link in the **Delete** column. Delete and re-enter a category account code if it needs to be edited.

Categories Accou	unts Setup		
Category *	2016 Mileage	Ŧ	
Locations *		Q	
Account *			
	Categories Accounts Setup	Clear Entries	
Categories Accounts			1-1 of 1 items processed
Category	Location	Account	DELETE
2016 Mileage	Comdata	ACC	1

Expense Track

Define Expense Items

Expense items must be created for every individual expense type that will be requested. Each item is linked to an expense type that further specifies the expense item for reporting and coding purposes. Expense items can be imported to Expense Track if you have several to add at once. Follow the steps below to add expense items.

- Add Expense Item
- Create Default Expense Item

Add Expense Items

 On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon ([☆] [•]) > Catalog > Items.



2. On the Items page, click Add Expense Item.

Note: The Add button is not used to enter expense items. You must select Add Expense Item.

em List			Sort Item Name (Z->A)
AIIABCDEFGHI	JKLMNO	P Q R S T U	V W X Y
Filter Show All Keywords	Submit		
2015 Mileage [, 2015 Mileage, Expenses]	View	Reason for Remove Item	
2016 Mileage [, 2016 Mileage, Expenses] Advertising [, Advertising, Expenses]	Add		
Airfare [, Airfare, Expenses]	Edit		
Breakfast [, Breakfast, Expenses] Business Entertainment [, Business Entertainment, Exper			
Business Meals [, Business Meals, Expenses]	Сору		
ar Rental [, Car Rental , Expenses] ilient Entertainment [, Client Entertainment, Expenses]	Disable/Enable		
lient Meals [, Client Meals, Client Meals]	Remove Item		
ollateral/Promotional Items [, Collateral/Promotional Ite	Add Expense Item		
Company Event [, Company Event, Expenses] Dinner [, Dinner, Expenses]			
Dues [, Dues, Expenses]	Review Suggested Item		
reight - Other [, Freight - Other, Expenses]	Reset		
Freight - Overnight [, Freight - Overnight, Expenses] Hotel [, Hotel, Expenses]			
unch [, Lunch, Expenses]			
Marketing [, Marketing, Expenses]			
Office Supplies [, Office Supplies, Expenses]			
Parking Fees [, Parking Fees, Expenses] Postage [, Postage , Postage]			
Registrations [, Registrations, Expenses]			
Rental Car Fuel [, Rental Car Fuel, Expenses]			
Subscriptions [, Subscriptions, Expenses]			
[axi [, Taxi, Expenses]			
[oll [, Toll, Expenses]			

3. Complete all fields as necessary. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk. Click **Finish** to save the expense item.

Expense Item S	etup
Item Name *	General Expense
Item Description	General Expense
Account Code	
Accounts Coding Type	•
Item Category *	Expenses 🔻
Expense Type *	General Expense 🔻
Max Allowed Amount *	0.0000
Select Approval Option *	Route to Manager
Require Receipt above *	0.01
Reimbursable	● Yes ○ No
Require Description	Yes No
Require Vendor Selection	○ Yes ● No
Expense Advance Type *	No Advance 🔻
Custom Field 1 Label	
Custom Field 2 Label	
Custom Field 3 Label	
Merchant Category Code(MCC)	742-Veterinary Services, 763-Agr Q
	Finish Clear Entries

(see field descriptions on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field	Description
Item Name	The expense item's name which will display on the Create Expense Report page.
Item Description	Description of the expense item.
Account Code	Value used for default coding on expenses (example: 1001-7520-1115).
Accounts Coding Type	Select a default accounts coding type for this expense item. When selected, the accounts coding on this expense item will default to your selected accounts coding type (including credit card imports). This setting ignores any accounts coding type defaults set at the global or expense type level. Note: This field displays only if Split Entry Field Format is selected for system setting 829 - Accounting Code Selection Type .
Item Category	Select the item category that best specifies the expense item.
Expense Type	Select the expense type that is assigned to the expense item.
Max Allowed Amount	Enter the maximum amount in dollars that your company allows for approval. If you enter a value greater than 0 and a user adds an expense greater than your amount, the system will behave as defined in the Select Approval Option field. Note: If the Allow Amount Edit field on the Add/Edit Expense Type page is set to No , the Max Allowed Amount is the reimbursable amount. Also note that if you are setting up a mileage expense item, use this field to enter your reimbursable mileage rate (example: 0.54).
Select Approval Option	 Choose one of the following approval options: Decline – All expense reports created that are over the maximum allowed amount are automatically declined. Route to Manager – All expense reports that are over the maximum allowed amount are routed for approval to the requestor's manager. Select this option if there is no approval rule setup for users in normal expense conditions. Reimburse to Max Amount – All expense reports that are created and are over the maximum allowed amount will be set to reimburse the maximum amount only. The Approver can change the reimbursement amount if necessary.

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field	Description
Require Receipt above	Enter the amount in dollars that is allowed before an expense report needs to be manually reviewed and reconciled so it can be released for payment. The system can be set up so that all expenses are matched with a receipt. To do this manually, set this field to a very low value. Example: 0.01
Reimbursable	Yes: The amount will allow entry and reimbursement of the amount entered. Ensure this field is always set to Yes , otherwise credit card transactions will auto-approve at \$0.00.
Require Description	 Yes: Requires users to enter a description for every expense item they add to a draft expense report. No: Users can enter expense items without a description. Note: System setting 2297 – Require Expense Description by Default must be enabled for access to this feature.
Require Vendor Selection	No: User is not required to select a vendor during expense report creation. Note: This field should always be No.
Expense Advance Type	No Advance: No advance is allowed for this expense item. Advance Only: Select this option only if an advance can be claimed for this expense item.
Customer Field Label 1-3	Used to label custom fields for capturing any additional information.
Merchant Category Code (MCC)	Restrict the expense item to one or more MCCs using the Look Up icon (Note: MCCs are pre-loaded into Expense Track during account implementation. When expense items are associated with MCCs, the credit card transactions are automatically associated with that item when it is imported into the system. Each MCC can be mapped to multiple expense items. When an item is imported that has multiple MCCs, the transaction defaults to the first item.

Create a Default Expense Item

As you add expense items, ensure you create a default expense item. Default expense items are items that imported credit card transactions will match to if the import map fails. Once the transaction enters the system, it will display on an expense report in red flag status (*) and with no editing options. The user will need to only select the correct expense item to fix the transaction.

Ensure the default expense item has a name that is different from your other expense items. An example name of a default expense item may be "Select Expense Item", "Default Expense Item", or "Unmatched Expense Item". For more information, see the topic Correct Unmatched Credit Card Transactions.

Set up Expense Itemizations

Expense itemizations enable you to further break down an expense item into itemized details. For example, a lodging expense item can be further broken down into room rates, taxes, entertainment, etc. Follow these steps to add expense itemization fields.

Note: Expense itemizations are only valid for reimbursable out of pocket expenses as credit card transactions display this information in the associated level 3 transaction data.

Add Expense Itemizations

1. On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon (☆ *) > Expense > Expense Itemizations.



2. On the Expense Itemizations page, click Add.

Filter	Keywords	Submit	
		^	Add
			Edit
			Delete
			Reset

3. Complete each field as necessary. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk. Click **Add/Edit Expense Itemization Field** when finished.

Add/Edit Expe	ense Itemization Field
Expense Item *	2015 Mileage
Itemized Field Name *	
Required *	🖲 Yes 🔘 No
Reimbursable *	Yes No
Max. Reimbursable Amt.	
Default Amount	
Field Order	0
Multiple Itemization Type	None •
	Add/Edit Expense Itemization Field
	Clear Entries

Field	Description		
Expense Item	Select an expense item from the drop down list.		
Itemized Field Name	Enter a name for the itemized field.		
Required	Yes: The Expense Item field becomes required when entering an expense report. No: The Expense Item field becomes unrequired.		

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field	Description			
Reimbursable	Yes: The amount will allow entry and reimbursement of amount entered. No: The system deducts the value of this expense from the total reimbursement value.			
Max. Reimbursable Amt.	Enter the maximum amount for the expense itemization in dollars that the company will reimburse. If specified, the system will only reimburse up to this amount for any expense itemized in this field.			
Default Amount	Enter the default amount for this field. Example: 0			
Field Order	Enter a numeric value, which decides the order in which the added fields are displayed in the Itemization Entry page when more than one field is added.			
Multiple Itemization Type	Select Date to provide multiple records for the selected Expense Type for the same expense report.			

Set up Credit Card Imports

Expense Track offers the ability to set up how and when credit card data imports into the website. This can be done under **Settings icon** (*) > **System** > **System Settings**.

Credit Card Import

Use Automatic Receipt Matching (2300)

System Summary Description Use this setting to enable or disable automatic receipt matching for a tenant.

Business Background

When enabled, the system automatically associates uploaded receipts to expense line items if the amount and date match. Automatic matching is triggered when level 3 credit card transactions are imported into the system, a user uploads a receipt, or a user views expense line information. Automatic matching increases the speed in which expense drafts requiring receipts can be created, approved, and reconciled.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values: Yes or No (expected value is Yes)
- Default setting: No
- **Responsibility:** This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process

Number of days before Receipt Reminder is sent (2301)

System Summary Description

This setting determines how many days a receipt can exist in the system without being matched to an expense line before a notification is sent to the user.

Business Background

For tenants with automatic receipt matching enabled, the notification alerts users when an uploaded receipt cannot be matched and must be manually associated with an expense line item. For tenants without automatic receipt matching, the notification is triggered for all receipts that are not associated to an expense line item. This tool helps ensure that all receipts are properly associated with expense items, making approval and reconciliation more efficient.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values: Any positive numeral, up to 255 characters.
- Default setting: 2
- **Responsibility:** This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

Draft Naming Convention (2305)

System Summary Description

This setting determines how the system names expense drafts generated for imported credit card expenses.

Business Background

The expense draft name decides which information is most readily visible to expense draft viewers and approvers. Some users may prefer to see the credit card name, some the expense period, and some the associated user's name.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values:
 - o Expense Period
 - Name Expense Period
 - Card Number Expense Period
 - o Card Name Expense Period
- Default setting: Expense Period
- Responsibility: This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

Credit Card Expense Report Cycle Frequency (2310)

System Summary Description

This setting determines how often the system generates new expense drafts for imported credit card expenses.

Business Background

Some businesses track credit card expenses at different frequencies, such as weekly, twice a month, or monthly. Generating new expense drafts that match these processes allows for more efficient expense tracking and approval.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values
 - o Weekly
 - Semimonthly
 - o Monthly
 - o Calendar Month
- Default setting: Calendar Month
- **Responsibility:** This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

First Day of Week for Expense Report Cycle (2311)

System Summary Description

Determines the day of the week on which the credit card expense report cycle begins for weekly expense draft creation. Only used if system setting 2310 - Credit Card Expense Report Cycle Frequency is set to Weekly.

Business Background

Allows the user to customize the expense draft creation to match their weekly expense tracking.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values
 - Sunday
 - Monday
 - Tuesday
 - Wednesday
 - o Thursday
 - Friday
 - o Saturday
- Default setting: Monday
- **Responsibility:** This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

Day of Month for First Credit Card Expense Report Cycle (2312)

System Summary Description

Determines the day of the month on which the billing cycle begins for monthly or semimonthly expense draft creation. Only used if system setting 2310 - Credit Card Expense Report Cycle Frequency is set to Monthly or Semimonthly. If billing cycle is semimonthly, this setting sets the day for the first billing cycle of the month.

Business Background

Allows the user to customize the expense draft creation to match their monthly or semimonthly expense tracking.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values: Drop-down list, 1-28
- Default setting: 1
- Responsibility: This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

Day of Month for Second Credit Card Expense Report Cycle (2313)

System Summary Description

Determines the day of the month on which the second credit card expense cycle begins for semimonthly expense draft creation. Only used if system setting 2310 - Credit Card Expense Report Cycle Frequency is set to Semimonthly. This setting must be greater than the value set in system setting 2312 - Day of month for First Credit Card Expense Report Cycle.

Business Background

Allows the user to customize the expense draft creation to match their semimonthly expense tracking.

- Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]
- Valid Values: Drop-down list, 2-28
- Default setting: 15
- **Responsibility:** This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

Default Expense Item for Unmatched CC Transactions (2320)

System Summary Description

Allows you to enter a default expense item for unmatched credit card transactions. Ensure the default expense item has been set up before assigning it. Do not assign an expense item that is normally in user (example: Travel, Airfare, Mileage, etc.). It is mandatory to set up this setting.

Business Background

Allows the user to default all unmatched credit card transactions to a unique expense item. It is mandatory to set up this system setting, as unmatched credit card transactions will not enter Expense Track otherwise.

Multi-Tenant Type: Tenant [3]

Valid Values: Any default expense item (example: Default Expense Item, Unmatched Expense Item,

etc.)

Default setting: Blank

Responsibility

This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process.

Additional System Settings

Enable Attachment/Receipt Requirement for Expenses (2161)

System Summary Description

Allows you to require receipt images on all expense reports. You can require receipt images at the report header level, line item level, or both. Although there is a **Disabled** option, Expense Track requires all expense reports to have receipt images.

Note: If the transaction amount is a negative (a credit), this setting is ignored.

Business Background

Required receipt images help keep track of transactions for accounting purposes.

Multi-Tenant Type

Tenant [3]

Valid Values

- Disabled
- Header Level
- Item Level
- Header or Line Level

Default Setting

Line Level

Responsibility

This setting is created/enabled during the implementation process

Accounting Code Selection Type (829)

System Summary Description

Determines if users will manually enter or select accounting codes from a list.

Business Background

This setting allows you to determine how users will enter accounting codes on expense items.

Multi-Tenant Type

Tenant [3]

Valid Values

- Text Entry: Users can freely enter accounting codes in a text field
- Selectable: Users can select accounting codes from a list or enter them in a text field

• Selectable (Text Entry Disabled): Users can only select accounting codes from a List

- Look Up: Users can select accounting codes from a pop-up window as well as enter them in a text field
- Look Up (Text Entry Disabled): Users can only select accounting codes from a pop-up window
- Split Field Entry Format: Users can select accounting codes from different segments

Default Setting

Text Entry

Responsibility

This setting is enabled during the implementation process.

Enable Notes Field for Split Coding Entry (898)

System Summary Description

When enabled, the Coding Notes field is displayed on the Split Account Code page wherever present in the Expense Track website. If the user chooses to apply split coding information to additional items on an expense report, the coding notes are also copied over to the other selected items.

Business Background

Coding notes allows a user or an approver to make comments about the accounts coding applied to an expense item.

Multi-Tenant Type Tenant [3] Valid Values: Yes or No

Default Setting: No

Set up Account Codes

Account codes are general ledger (GL) numeric values used to assign transactions to specific entities within your company. This allows your cardholders to associate expenses to different divisions and projects, which ultimately helps correctly allocate costs. This feature is especially useful if your users will split account codes or export accounting files into an Accounts Payable system.

Typically, your Comdata Implementation Specialist will set up account codes for you during your Expense Track setup. However, you can add or edit account codes at any time after setup. For best practice, consult a Comdata representative before configuring account codes to avoid causing problems.

Click a link below to learn more:

- <u>Set up Accounting Codes</u>
- <u>Set up Accounting Code Groups</u>
- <u>Set up Accounting Periods</u>
- Manage External Account Codes
- <u>Set up Account Code Defaults by MCC</u>

Set up Accounting Codes

Although a Comdata Implementation Specialist will set up your account code structure, you can add or edit account codes at any time. Follow these steps to add/edit an account code.

 On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon ([☆] ⁻) > Accounting > Account Codes.

¢-		
System	Þ	
Users	•	
Payment Inform	ation 🕨	
Vendors	•	
Catalog	•	
Geographic		Click to manage account codes.
Accounting	- 1	Accounting Codes
Other Data	- → [Accounting Code Groups
Expense	•	Account Types
		Accounts Coding Types
		Accounting Periods

2. The Account Codes List page displays with a list of all account codes within your Expense Track instance. Click Add to enter a new account code (or select an account code from the list and then click Edit).

ilter Keywords Submit	
1000 [User , 0] Enabled	Add
1001 [Location , 0] Enabled	- 19
1001-7500-1000-55157 [Global , 0] Enabled	Edit
1001-7500-1000-70309 [Global , 0] Enabled	Delete
1001-7500-1000-70310 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1000-71359 [Global , 0] Enabled	Reset
1001-7500-1000-77730 [Global , 0] Disabled	
1001-7500-1000-78401 [Global , 0] Disabled	
1001-7500-1000-88715 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-55152 [Global , 0] Disabled	
1001-7500-1010-55157 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-60550 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-6550 [Global , 0] Enabled 1001-7500-1010-70309 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-70309 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-73430 [Global , 0] Disabled	
1001-7500-1010-76720 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-78401 [Global , 0] Disabled	
1001-7500-1010-78402 [Global , 0] Enabled	
1001-7500-1010-80410 [Global , 0] Disabled	
1001-7500-1010-88711 [Global , 0] Enabled	

3. Complete each field. Required fields are denoted by an asterisk.

Add/Edit Accountir	ng Code
Accounting Code	
Account Type *	Global
Reference ID *	0
Accounting Code Group *	Default •
Description	
Default For	
Parent Account Codes	
Enabled *	● Yes No
	Add/Edit Accounting Code Clear Entries

Field Name	Field Name					
Accounting Code	The numeric value for the account code.					
Account Type	The type of account code, including:					
	• Global: the code can be used by every department or project in					
	the company.					
	Location: specify a specific location for the account code					
	Group: create an account code for a specific user group					
	• User: create an account code for a specific user. Only the user with					
	the appropriate reference ID can use this account code.					
	• Default Code: default all expense items to this account code					
	selection.					
	• Use Tax: enable only a specific set of codes to be entered as valid					
	use tax account codes.					
	• Freight: set account codes by freight expenses.					
	• Custom 1-3: set custom account codes for other business needs.					

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field Name	Field Name	
Reference ID	Enter a reference ID if the Account Type is User, Group, or Location.	
Accounting Code Group	p The accounting code group to assign the account code.	
Description	A description of the account code.	
Default For	If Default Code is selected as the Account Type, use this field to enter what the default is.	
Parent Account Codes	If applicable, enter any parent account codes.	
Enabled	Yes - active No - inactive	

4. Click **Add/Edit Accounting Code** to finish. Your new/edited account code will display in the list on the Accounts Code List page.

Set up Accounting Code Groups

Accounting code groups allow you to associate a range of account codes to a group. This feature is useful for easily managing account codes in a group rather than individually. Note that the account codes should be created first before you assign them to a group.

On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon (*) > Accounting > Accounting Code Groups.



2. The Accounting Code Groups List page opens with a list of all your accounting code groups. Select one of the options on the right side of the page.

Accounting Code Groups List		Sort	Accounting Code Group Name 🔻
Filter Show All V Keywords	Submit		
1 Test,	Add		
	Edit		
	Delete		
	Download		
	Assign		
	Unassign		
	Reassign Approver		
	Reset		
Showing 1 item(s)			

Add/Edit an Accounting Code Group

- 1. Click Add to create a new accounting code group (or select one from the list and then click Edit).
- 2. Enter a name for the accounting code group. Then, click Add Accounting Code Group.

Add Accounting Code Group					
Accounting Code Group Name					
	Add Accounting Code Group	Clear Entries			

3. The accounting code group will display in the list.

Download an Accounting Code Group

This option allows you to download an Excel spreadsheet of all account codes within the group. Use this feature to keep a physical record of all account codes within your accounting code groups.

Assign/Unassign Account Codes

Once you've created an accounting code group, you can begin assigning it account codes.

- 1. Select an existing accounting code group from the list, and then click Assign.
- 2. The Assign Codes Step 1 page opens. The page initially opens blank and provides fields for assigning and unassigning account codes. To populate the page with account codes, select an **Account Type** and then click **Retrieve**.

Note: The Show All Unassigned check box prompts the system to display only unassigned account codes when **Retrieve** is clicked. When **Show All Unassigned** is selected, the system ignores the **Account Type** selection and any value entered in the **Search Account Code** field. All unassigned account codes in the system will display.

Global Global	Search Account Code			Retrieve		
Jnassigned Acc	ount Codes		A	ssigned Acco	ount Codes	
Account Type	Account Code	Description		Account Type	Account Code	Description
			~			

Expense Track Administrator Guide

3. The page will populate with all assigned and unassigned account codes. To assign an account code to the group, select the check box next to it and then click the

arrow icon (). To unassign an account code, select it from the Assigned Account Codes list and then click **Remove**.

Step Accor Type	Global	Search Account Code	est			Retrieve		
Una	Unassigned ssigned Acc	ount Codes			Assigr	ned Accou	nt Codes	
	Account Type	Account Code	Description			Account Type	Account Code	Description
	Global	1001-7500- 1000-55157						
	Global	1001-7500- 1000-70309						
	Global	1001-7500- 1000-70310						
	Global	1001-7500- 1000-71359						
	Global	1001-7500- 1000-77730		>>				
	Global	1001-7500- 1000-78401	•					
« <u>1</u> 16	2 3 4 5 6		11 12 13 14 15 24 25 26 27 28		Remo	Ve		
29			37 38 39 40 41		_	-		
42	43 44 45 4	6 47 48 49	50 51 52 53 54					
	56 57 58 5		63 64 65 66 67					
			76 77 78 79 80 89 90 91 92 93					
			1 102 103 104					
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	112 113 114					
115	116 117 118	119 »						
						Ca	ncel Assign A	Approvers Finis

4. After making your selections, click **Finish**. You will be returned to the Accounting Code Groups List page with a success message.

Successfully Added/Edited Account Code Group				
Accounting Code Groups List	Accounting Code Group Name 🔻			
Filter Show All 🔻 Keywords Submit				

5. To unassign all account codes from a group, select the group from the list and then click **Unassign**.

Accounting Code Groups List	
Filter Show All Keywords	Submit
1 Test,	Add
2	Edit
	Delete
	Download
	Assign
	Unassign
	Reassign Approver
	Reset
.	
Showing 1 item(s)	

6. Click Yes to complete unassigning the account codes.



You will be returned to the Accounting Code Group List page with a success message.

Successfully Unassigned Accounting Codes from Accounting Code Groups					
Accounting Code Groups List Sort Accounting Code Group Name 🔻					
Filter Show All 🔻 Keywords Submit					

Set up Accounting Periods

If your company's accounting periods change, you can apply those changes within Expense Track to avoid issues of processing expense reports. Normally, accounting periods are already set up for you, but you can edit these at any time.

On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon (*) > Accounting > Accounting Periods.



2. The Accounting Periods page opens with a grid of all accounting periods set up for your

company. Click the plus button (¹) to add a new accounting period. Note: Click the question mark icon (²) for a guided tour on how to use this page.

τ- +					
Start Date	End Date 👻	Accounting Period Name			
02/11/2017	02/28/2017	Testing - SH			
02/01/2017	02/10/2017				
01/16/2017	01/31/2017				
01/02/2017	01/15/2017				
01/01/2016	01/01/2017				

Add Accounting Period			
Start Date*	03/01/2017		
End Date*	mm/dd/yyyy		
Accounting Period Name			
	Clear All Submit		

Note: Be aware of the following as you create accounting periods:

- The End Date must be equal to or greater than the Start Date.
- When creating a new accounting period, the **Start Date** will default to the first available date that falls after the latest End Date in the grid. For example, if the latest
- End Date is Friday, January 27, the next available Start Date is Monday, January 30.
- Accounting Periods cannot overlap.
- Start Dates begin at 12:00:00 am of the date selected. End Dates end at 11:59:59 pm of the date selected.
- If editing, the Start Date and/or End Date will be read-only fields if those dates have passed.
- You cannot delete accounting periods. If you add an accounting period in error, contact a Comdata representative to have it removed.
- Your accounting period now displays in the grid on the Accounting Periods page.
 Note: To edit an existing accounting period, select the check box for the period

you want, and then click the edit icon (



Manage External Account Codes

If your account code information is stored in an external data source (i.e., an accounting system or ERP), you will need to use Comdata's Export Sync Tool to export and configure your account codes in Expense Track. When your account codes are exported and stored in the Expense Track database tables, you can add, edit, and delete each accounts coding.

Note: System setting **975 - Accounts Coding External Datasource** must be enabled to access the Manage External Accounts Coding page.

 On the Expense Track main menu, select the Settings icon (↔ ·) > Accounting > External Account Codes.



2. The Manage External Account Codes page opens. Use the **Select Table** drop-down to select a table you wish to edit, then click **Refresh** to display the account codes in your selected table.

Note: The first table in the database will display by default.

Y • Select table: segmentslevel01 • Refresh								
External Account Codes Account Code Account Code Account Type Enabled								
	10	VCS Applicant Tracking	null	null	Company	Yes		
	1	Viewpoint Construction & Service	null	null	Company	Yes		
	201	VCS Australia			Company	Yes		
	5	VCS Consolidations			Company	Yes		
	1	Viewpoint Construction & Service			Company	Yes		

- **3.** To add an account code, click the plus icon (
- The Add External Account Code page opens. Complete each field and then click Add Account Code.

Add Exterr	nal Account Code
Table	segmentslevel01
	Table keys: Tenant_ID AccountCode Reference_ID
Account code *	
Description	
Reference ID	
Account code group	Default •
Account type	Global 🔻
ParentRef1	
Enabled	No Ves
	Add Account Code Clear Entries

Field	Description	
Table	Select the table for which the account code will be added.	
Account Code*	The numeric value for the account code.	
Description	Enter a description of the account code (example; Equipment, Construction and Service, Projects, etc.).	
Reference ID	Enter a reference ID if the Account Type is User, Group, or Location.	
Account Code Group	If available, select the accounting code group to assign the account code.	

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field	Description			
Account Type	The type of account code, including:			
	• Global: the code can be used by every department or project			
	in your company			
	• Location: specify a specific location for the account code			
	• Group: create an account code for a specific user group			
	• User: create an account code for a specific user. Only the			
	user with the appropriate reference ID can use this account			
	code			
	• Default Code: default all expense items to this account code			
	selection			
	• Use Tax: enable only a specific set of codes to be entered as			
	valid use tax account codes			
	 Freight: set account codes by freight expenses 			
	• Custom 1-3: set custom account codes for other business			
	needs			
ParentRef1	If applicable, enter any parent account codes.			
Enabled	Yes - active			
	No - inactive			

- 5. The account code will now display in the list of account codes for your selected table.
- 6. To edit an account code, select an account code in the list. Then, click the pencil icon (



Mä	Vanage External Account Codes 💿						
Y - Select table: segmentslevel01 • Refresh							
Ex	ternal Account Codes					1 rows selected 🔺	
	Account Code	Description	Reference ID	Account Code Group	Account Type	Enabled	
	10	VCS Applicant Tracking	null	null	Company	Yes	
	1	Viewpoint Construction & Service	null	null	Company	Yes	
☑ 201 VCS Australia Company Yes							
	5	VCS Consolidations			Company	Yes	
	1	Viewpoint Construction & Service			Company	Yes	
	Image 1 of 1 Image 20 ▼ Showing 1 - 5 of 5 items						

7. The Edit External Account Code page opens. Complete each field, then click Edit Account Code.

Edit External Account Code					
Table	segmentslevel01				
Account code *	10				
Description	VCS Applicant Tracking				
Reference ID	null				
Account code group	Default •				
Account type	Global 🔻				
ParentRef1	null				
Enabled	🔘 No 💿 Yes				
	Edit Account Code Clear Entries				

- 8. The edits will be applied to your selected account code.
- 9. To delete an account code, select it from the list and then click the Delete icon (
 You will be prompted to confirm deletion. This action is useful if an account code is set up incorrectly or is no longer used.

Má	Janage External Account Codes 💿						
T	Y ~ Select table: segmentslevel01 V Image: Comparison of the segmentslevel of the segment segm						
Ex	External Account Codes 1 rows selected						
	Account Code	Description	Reference ID	Account Code Group	Account Type	Enabled	
	10	VCS Applicant Tracking	null	null	Company	Yes	
	1	Viewpoint Construction & Service	null	null	Company	Yes	
	201	VCS Australia			Company	Yes	
	5	VCS Consolidations			Company	Yes	
	1	Viewpoint Construction & Service			Company	Yes	
	₩						

Set up Account Code Defaults by Merchant Category Code

Every transaction performed with a Comdata Mastercard is tied to a Merchant Category Code (MCC). The MCC is a four-digit number that the type of merchant where the transaction occurred (example: MCC 1771 – Concrete Work Contractors, MCC 5039 – Construction Materials, MCC 4816 – Computer Network/Information Services, etc.).

Often, the accounts coding needed for a transaction is related to the transaction's MCC. With this feature, when a Comdata Mastercard transaction is imported into the system, you can default the accounts coding on the expense item to specific values based on the MCC.

Access the MCC Coding Defaults page (Admin gear ([☆] ·) > Expense > MCC Coding Defaults).

Note: To access this page, permission **99 – Can Manage MCC Coding Defaults** must be enabled for your user profile.



2. The MCC Coding Defaults page displays all possible MCCs provided by Mastercard.

Select one or many MCCs and click the edit button (¹) to add or edit the coding defaults.

Note: To delete accounts coding defaults on an MCC, select the MCC and click the delete button



MCC Coding Defaults 💿				
۲۰				
мсс	MCC Description	Default Accounts Coding Type	Has Default Coding	
742	Veterinary Services	Induced Deserves	No	
763	Agricultural Co-operative		No	
780	Landscaping And Horticultural Services		No	
1520	Gen'l Contractors-Res. Bldgs		No	
1711	Heat, Plum., Air Cond. Contractors		No	
1731	Electrical Contractors		No	
1740	Masonry, Stonework, Tile Setting, Plastering, and Insulation		No	
1750	Carpentry		No	
1761	Roofing, Siding, and Sheet Metal Work		No	
1771	Contractors - Concrete Work		No	
1799	Trade Contractors - Special		No	
2741	Miscellaneous Publishing & Printing		No	
2791	Typesetting, Plate Making, and Related Services		No	
2842	Specialty Cleaning, Polishing, and Sanitation Prep.		No	
2000	United Airlines		▼.	
25 v pe	r page	1-20 of 934 « < 1 2 3	4567 »	

Field	Description
мсс	The four-digit code identifying the MCC. Click this link to open the Edit Defaults window.
MCC Description	Description of the MCC (example: Electrical Contractors, Carpentry, etc.).
Default Accounts Coding Type	If you apply an accounts coding to the MCC, it will display in this column (example: Indirect Expense, Job Expense, Equipment Expense, etc.).
Has Default Coding	If you apply default values to the segment(s) in the account code, this column displays a Yes.

3. This action opens the Edit Defaults window which allows you to define the accounts coding type for any transaction with the selected MCC(s). You can set the segments as static values, or formulae, such as UserCode, ItemCode, LocationCode, etc. Click **Submit** when finished.

Edit Defaults			×
MCC Description		Contractors - Concrete Work	
мсс		1771	
Default Accounts Coding Type		Indirect Expense	
Company	Static 🔻		
GL Account	Formula 🔻	LocationCode	
Cancel		Subr	nit

A Success message displays confirming the default account code was applied. When a user codes transactions with this MCC, your selected values will display by default.

	CESS! ng defaults have been updated for MCC 1771		
	oding Defaults 💿		
T -			More Actions
мсс	MCC Description	Default Accounts Coding Type	Has Default Coding
1771	Contractors - Concrete Work	Indirect Expense	Yes
742	Veterinary Services		No
763	Agricultural Co-operative		No
780	Landscaping And Horticultural Services		No
1520	Gen'l Contractors-Res. Bldgs		No
1711	Heat, Plum., Air Cond. Contractors		No
1731	Electrical Contractors		No
1740	Masonry, Stonework, Tile Setting, Plastering, and Insulation		No
1750	Carpentry		No
1761	Roofing, Siding, and Sheet Metal Work		No
1799	Trade Contractors - Special		No
2741	Miscellaneous Publishing & Printing		No
2791	Typesetting, Plate Making, and Related Services		No
2842	Specialty Cleaning, Polishing, and Sanitation Prep.		No
2000	United Airliner		No
Set up Self-Service Card Management

If your users are assigned a Comdata Corporate Mastercard, they will have the ability to view their card's balance, credit limit, and transaction activity, or submit a request for a credit limit increase or replacement card. All of this can be done right within Expense Track. This feature eliminates many of the manual efforts involved with corporate card service requests, such as filling out paper forms and tracking each request. By adding this ability to the Expense Track website, you can manage card service requests from one location.

Note: The user must have at least one Comdata Corporate Mastercard assigned to them. Also, the following permissions/system settings are needed in order for users to access this feature:

- (172) Manage Data Attributes. Needed for Administrators to set up card request rules and parameters within Expense Track.
- (2020) Manage Card Service Requests. Assign this permission to users that will be responsible for reviewing and approving credit limit increase and card replacement requests. By selecting this option, you can configure approvals by location or location groups.
- System Setting (1195) Enable Summary Approval/Decline from Approval List. Ensure this system setting is set to Yes as it is also required for approvers to review and approve card service requests.
- System setting (2031) Electronic Signature for Credit Card Limit Increase Requests (Optional). This is an optional system setting that you can apply if you require an electronic signature for card service requests. You can require users to enter their password, employee ID, or email upon submitting a request.

Click a link below to learn more:

- <u>Set up Card Service Request Data Attributes</u>
- <u>Set up Card Service Request Approval Rules</u>
- <u>Approve and Process Card Service Requests</u>

Set up Card-Service Request Data Attributes

In order for users to submit credit limit increase and card replacement request, you must set up data attributes. Users will receive an error when attempting to submit a request until you set up the appropriate forms.

 To access the setup process, select the Settings icon ([☆] ⁻) > Other Data > Manage Data Attributes.



2. This opens the Data Attributes Type List page; click Add.

ta Attribut	e Types List		
ilter All	• and - All Statuses • Keywords	Submit	
		^	Add
			Edit
			Publish
			Disable
			Delete
			Manage Data Attributes
			Reset
		.	

3. Enter a name for the data attribute and ensure the name reflects the request you intend to create. For example, if you're creating a card replacement request, enter "card replacement" or something similar.

Add Data Attribute Type					
Data Attribute Type Name*	Attribute Type Name* Credit Limit Increase				
Data Attribute Category*	Credit Limit Increase 🔻				
	Next Clear Entries				

4. Ensure the information is entered correctly, then click **Finish**.

Add Simple Attribute Type			
Card Service Attribute Type Name Card Replacement			
Action	Finish Clear Entries		

5. You will be returned to the Data Attributes Types List page. Select the data attribute you created, then click **Manage Data Attributes**. This is where you'll create the fields that will display on the forms needed to submit card service requests.

ata Attribute	e Types List		
Filter All	• and - All Statuses • Keywords	Submit	
Credit Limit Increas	e [337], Credit Limit Incease, Draft	^	Add
			Edit
			Publish
			Disable
			Delete
			Manage Data Attributes
			Reset
		*	
Showing All and All S	tatuses records. 1 item(s)		

6. The Data Attributes List page opens; click Add.

Data	Attributes Lis	st			
Filter	Keywords	Submit			
			^ [Add	
				Edit	
				Delete	
				Reset	
Showing	g 0 item(s)		Ť		

7. Complete each field, then click Next.

Step 1 Step 2	
Add Data Attri	bute
Data Attribute Name*	Credit Limit Increase
Attribute Field Type*	Currency •
Sort Order	
	Next Clear Entries

(see field descriptions on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Field Name	Description				
Data Attribute Name	Enter a label for the field.				
Attribute Field Type	Select the type of field to create. Options include:				
	• Checkbox				
	• Currency				
	• Date				
	• Display				
	• File				
	• Image				
	• Lookup				
	Number				
	Radio Button				
	• Text Box				
	Textarea				
Sort Order	Determines where the field will display on the form (0 = appears first,				
	1 = appears second, etc.).				

8. Complete each field on Step 2 to further define the data attribute. The displayed fields vary depending on the value selected in the Attribute Field Type field in Step 1. When finished, click Save. Repeat this process to add as many fields as necessary to the card service request form.

Step 1	Step 2	
Add Da	ata Attri	bute
Data Attrib	ute Name*	Credit Limit Increase
Attribute I	Field Type*	Currency
	Required*	🔘 Yes 💿 No
Validat	ion Value*	Equal To
Succe	ess Criteria	
St	art Range*	
E	nd Range*	
Notificatio	On-Screen n Message	
Data A	ttribute ID	1303
		Save Clear Entries

Successfully published selected data attribute types	
ta Attribute Types List	
ilter All • and - All Statuses • Keywords Submit	
Credit Limit Increase [337], Credit Limit Incease, Published	Add
	Edit
	Publish
	Disable
	Delete
	Manage Data Attributes
	Reset

Set up Card Service Request Approval Rules

After you complete setting up the data attribute, you can apply approval rules if your company requires card service requests to follow an approval process.

1. To access the Rules Wizard, select the Settings icon (*) > Users > Rules.



2. Click Create Rule.

ilter Show All	• Keyv	vords	S	ubmit		
					A	Rule Status
						Create Rule
					1	Edit Rule
						Delete Rule(s)
						Enable Rules
						Disable Rule(s)
						View Routing
						Reset

In Step 1, set up the basic details on the rule, such as the rule name, start and expiration date, and priority. Ensure the Rule Type field is set to Card Service Request and Applies to Expense is set to Yes. Click Next when finished.

Rule Wizard			Step 1
	Rule Name *	Credit Limit Increase	
$ \rightarrow \rightarrow \rightarrow () $	Rule Type *	Card Service Request	
	Start Date	 	
1	Expiration Date	 	
	Priority *	0	
	Applies to Expense	Yes No	
	User Selectable	Yes No	
	Rule Enabled	🖲 Yes 🔘 No	
		Clear Entries Cancel	Next

4. In Step 2, set up additional details on the card service request rule, such as the Rule Class (Replacement Card Request, Card Limit Increase Request), optional exception information, and the Rule Restrictor (None, Location Group/Location, User Group/User). Click Next when finished.

Rule Wizard			Credit Limit Increase - Step 2
	Please select the information	class and exception policy for Card Ser	rvice Request rule:
Marine -	Rule Class *	Card Limit Increase Request	v
	Exception after Days	0	
2 m	Exception Action	Do Nothing	T
501	Exception To		Q
	Rule Restrictor *	None	Ŧ
			Clear Entries Cancel Next

5. If you selected Location Group/Location or User Group/User, Step 3 allows you to select your users or locations the rule will apply to. If you selected None in the Rule Restrictor field, meaning the rule will apply to all users, Step 3 will ask you to select an approval routing type. Make your selection and click Next.

(see image on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Rule Wizard		Cre	edit Limit Increase - Step 3
	Please enter Card Limit Ind Routing Type *	erease Request specific approval in ● Stop Chain Parallel Manager Org Tree	ormation:
			Clear Entries Cancel Next

Routing Type	Description
Stop	The request will not be sent to any other users for approval. However, this option prevents users from submitting a card service request.
Chain	Allows you to select a series of users to review and approve requests.
Parallel	Allows you to select multiple approvers; if one user in the group approves the request, the other users will not need to approve it.
Manager	Each request will need to be approved by the user's manager.
Org Tree	Allows you to specify the levels in your organization the request must follow.

6. If you selected **Chain** or **Parallel**, Step 4 asks you to select the users to include in the approval chain. Once you add a user, use the **Move Up** and **Move Down** buttons to determine the order users will need to approve the request, with the top user being first in the chain. Make your selections, then click **Finish**.

Rule Wizard		Credit Limit Increase - Step 4
	You have selected Chain Routing. Specify the order i Current Administrator Only, Access (User) Administrator, Test Admin2 Approver 3, Test Approver 1, Test Approver 1, Test User 1, Test User 1, Test Tester, Test Smith, John Smith, Jane Add Users Add Users	n which requisitions are routed through the chain. t Routing Move Up Move Down Remove Users/Groups
		Clear Entries Cancel Finish

If you selected **Org Tree**, you can specify the levels in your organization the request must follow. For example, if 2 levels are selected, then the request must be approved by the user's manager and the manager's manager.

Rule Wizard				Test - Step 4
	You have selected Org Specify levels. Tree Levels *	ganizational Tree Routing.		
			Clear Entries	Cancel Finish

If you selected **Stop** or **Manager**, the rule set up is complete and you will be returned to the Rule List page.

7. Once you are finished setting up the rule, select it on the Rule List page and then click **Enable Rules**. The rule is now applied based on your settings.

Iter Show All V Keywords Submit	
Card Service Request - Credit Limit Increase (5148) [Card Service Request, Card Limit Increase Rec	Rule Status
	Create Rule
	Edit Rule
	Delete Rule(s)
	Enable Rules
	Disable Rule(s)
	View Routing
	Reset

Approve and Process Card Service Requests

Once a user submits a card service requests, and you have applied the appropriate approval rules, you or any user you deem responsible can review and approve requests, and submit them for processing.

Note: Remember, in order to approve and process card-service requests, the following permissions and system settings are required:

- (2020) Manage Card Service Requests. Assign this permission to users that will be responsible for reviewing and approving credit limit increase and card replacement requests. By selecting this option, you can configure approvals by location or location groups.
- System Setting (1195) Enable Summary Approval/Decline from Approval List. Ensure this setting is set to Yes as it is also required for approvers to review and approve card service requests.
- System Setting (2031) Electronic Signature for Credit Card Limit Increase Requests (Optional). This is an optional system setting that you can apply if you require an electronic signature for card service requests. You can require users to enter their password, employee ID, or email upon submitting a request.

Approve Card Service Requests

 To access card-service requests that are in approval, select Travel & Expense > Card Service Request Approvals.

Travel & Expense 👻 Rep	orts 👻 Spend Manager	- \$-
Manage/Search	Filters	Approve/Recon-
Expense Dashboard	Open Expenses	cile
Expense Drafts	Old Expenses	Pending Approval
Search Expenses	All Expenses	Approval History
My Cards		Pending Reconcilia- tion
Manage Card Service Requests		Reconciled Expenses
Expense Import Summary by Batch		Card Service Request Approvals
Expense Import Summary by User		

2. The Card Service Requests to Approve page contains each requests requiring your review. Select the check box for a requests and then click either **Approve** or **Decline**. If there are multiple approvers in the approval route, you can click **Return** to send a request back to the previous approver.

Do	ocuments Pending App	roval				
	Туре	Reference No. 👻	From	Creation Date	Location	Waiting for Approval
	Card Replacement	5	Kay Davis	08/10/2017 03:32 PM	Comdata	3 day(s)
	Credit Limit Increase	3	Kay Davis	08/10/2017 03:33 PM	Comdata	3 day(s)

Note: Click the Reference No. to review details on a request.

3. Click **OK** on the confirmation popup.

xpe	nseTrack	quis		pprove the selected doc	ument(s)?	≥8 =				
Card Service Request Cancel ок										
Do	ocuments Pending App	1 rows selected								
	Туре	Reference No. 👻	From	Creation Date	Location	Waiting for Approval				
•	Card Replacement	5	Kay Davis	08/10/2017 03:32 PM	Comdata	3 day(s)				
	Credit Limit Increase	3	Kay Davis	08/10/2017 03:33 PM	Comdata	3 day(s)				
						5 (6)				

Note: If you decline a request, you will need to enter a reason for your decline.

Please provide a reason for declining.	×
Decline	

The request is approved and removed from the list. The requestor will receive a message notifying them of your approval. If there is an approval chain, the next user in the chain will receive a notification message telling them they need to approve the request.

							T -
					oval	ocuments Pending App	Do
for Approval	Waiting for Ap	Location	Creation Date	From	Reference No. 🔺	Туре	
	0 day(s)	Comdata	08/10/2017 03:04 PM	Hannah Lawson	4	Card Replacement	
for /							

Process Card Service Requests

After a request is approved and ready to be processed, an email is sent to all users with permission **2020 – Manage Card Service Requests** for the requestor's expense location. The processing user can reject or submit a request for processing.

Note: Direct integration with the card management system will be available at a later date. At this time, credit limit increases and replacement cards must be processed in iConnectData and then marked as processed in Expense Track to track the status of the request.

1. To process card service requests, select Travel & Expense > Manage Card Service Requests.



2. Select a request and then click the check mark button (¹) to mark it as processed or click the x button (¹) to reject it. To review the details on a request, click the

Reference No.

Ma	anage Card	Service Rec	luests					
۲	•							~ 3
	ID	Card Account Name 👻	Date Created	Days Pending	User	Employee ID	Туре	Status
	1	BMY12	08/09/2017	11	Hannah Lawson	111714	Credit Limit Increase	Declined
	2	BMY12	08/10/2017	11	Kay Davis	111434	Credit Limit Increase	Declined
	3	BMY12	08/10/2017	10	Kay Davis	111434	Credit Limit Increase	Declined
	6	BMY12	08/14/2017	7	Kay Davis	111434	Credit Limit Increase	Rejected
•	4	BMY12	08/10/2017	10	Hannah Lawson	111714	Replacement Card	New/In Approval
	5	BMY12	08/10/2017	10	Kay Davis	111434	Replacement Card	Processed
	7	BMY12	08/15/2017	6	Kay Davis	111434	Replacement Card	Approved

3. You will receive a success message upon confirming your selection. The Status column reflects the action the approver user took on the request (Approved, Declined, New/In Approval) or the action you performed (Processed, Rejected). These requests are never removed from this page, so you can always come back and search for past requests if needed.

τ·		d Service Requ	JESIS					*
Successfully processed 1 Card Service Requests.								
)	ID	Card Account Name 👻	Date Created	Days Pending	User	Employee ID	Туре	Status
)	1	BMY12	08/09/2017	20	Hannah Lawson	111714	Credit Limit Increase	Declined
1	2	BMY12	08/10/2017	19	Kay Davis	111434	Credit Limit Increase	Declined
	3	BMY12	08/10/2017	19	Kristy Davis	111434	Credit Limit Increase	Declined
	6	BMY12	08/14/2017	15	Kristy Davis	111434	Credit Limit Increase	Rejected
	9	BMY12	08/29/2017	0	Hannah Lawson	111714	Credit Limit Increase	New/In Approva
	4	BMY12	08/10/2017	19	Hannah Lawson	111714	Replacement Card	New/In Approva
	5	BMY12	08/10/2017	19	Kristy Davis	111434	Replacement Card	Processed
	7	BMY12	08/15/2017	14	Kristy Davis	111434	Replacement Card	Processed
	8	BMY12	08/29/2017	0	Hannah Lawson	111714	Replacement Card	Processed

Note: You can only process or reject requests in Approved status.

Manage Expense Track

Once all of the set up pieces are complete, you can begin using and managing Expense Track. A common task for Administrators is to ensure data is accurate and current within the system. You can also change system settings, add and delete user accounts, and approve or decline expense reports. You can perform many of the same operations as your users (see the Expense Track user guide for more information), but there are some Administrator-specific tasks such as reconciling expense reports and correcting credit card transaction data.

See below for a list of management tasks:

- <u>Correct Unmatched Comdata Mastercard Transactions</u>
- Assign Delegate Users
- <u>Approve Expense Reports</u>
- <u>Reconcile Expense Reports</u>
- Extract Expense Data

Correct Unmatched Comdata Mastercard Transactions

All transactions performed with a Comdata Mastercard are imported into Expense Track and collected into draft expense reports. These draft expense reports are auto-created based on your company's expense period (weekly, semi-monthly, monthly, etc.). The transactions for the expense period match to reports based on the user, customer ID, and expense item (transaction detail). The transactions themselves match to an expense item based on the Mastercard Merchant Category Code (MCC).

When Comdata Mastercard data is imported into Expense Track, the users associated to each line item will receive a notification in Expense Track Messages, informing them of the import.

You can define how often Expense Track generates draft expense reports for imported Mastercard transactions. For example, if the frequency is set to monthly, your users will receive a draft expense report for all transaction for the previous month. Understanding the credit card expense draft frequency allows for efficient expense tracking and approval.

However, transactions may fail to match to the correct expense item if an error occurs in the mapping. These are known as unmatched transactions. In this situation, users cannot submit the expense report until they match the transaction to the correct expense item. There are multiple avenues for correcting unmatched transactions. Users will also receive notifications in Expense Track Messages of the failed matched items. The notification will be sent every day until the user corrects the expense item.

Note: Only posted Comdata Mastercard transactions display in Expense Track. Transactions generally appear 24 hours after the posting date except for Sundays.

Click a link below to learn more:

- Correct Comdata Mastercard Transactions on Expense Reports
- <u>Correct Comdata Mastercard Transactions By Batch</u>
- <u>Correct Comdata Mastercard Transactions by User</u>

Correct Comdata Mastercard Transactions on Expense Reports

If a Comdata Mastercard transaction fails to match to an expense item, it will match to the default expense item you defined at <u>set up</u>. If this happens for you or your users, you can make a correction on the expense report.

Note: You cannot correct transactions for another user on their expense report unless you are assigned as a Delegate user. However, you can do so through the <u>Expense Import Summary by</u> <u>Batch</u> page.

 Access the Expense Dashboard (Expense Track home page > Travel & Expense > Expense Dashboard).

Travel & Expense 👻 Rep	orts 👻 Spend Manager	- ¢-
Manage/Search	Filters	Approve/Recon-
Expense Dashboard	Open Expenses	cile
Expense Drafts	Old Expenses	Pending Approval
Search Expenses	All Expenses	Approval History
My Cards		Pending Reconcilia- tion
Manage Card Service Requests		Reconciled Expenses
Expense Import Summary by Batch		Card Service Request Approvals
Expense Import Summary by User		

2. Open an expense report you know has unmatched Comdata Mastercard transactions.

Evenence Drofts								Itineraries Update
Expense Drafts							_	🗙 April trip
1-5 of 23 item(s)					Create Expense F	Report	View all	
Report Title	Date	Created b	y i	Created fo	or	Total Acti	ons	
Apr 2018	04/10/2018	Hannah La	wson	Hanriah La	wson \$4	109.40 🧷	<	K RE Page 1 of 1 NEXT >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
Mar 2018	03/19/2018	Hannah La	wson	Hannah La	wson \$5	524.96 🤌 🍞	<	
TESt	02/08/2018	Hannah La	wson	Hannah La	wson \$2	260.00 🧷 🔊	<	Pocointo
Feb 2018	02/02/2018	Hannah La	wson	Hannah La	wson \$7	747.92 🤌	<	Receipts
January 2018b	01/24/2018	Hannah La	wson	Hannah La	wson	\$0.00 🤌 🔊	<	Only show my receipts
								Uploaded via Mobile App sent on
All Expenses							/iew all	Uploaded via Mobile App sent on 05/04/2018 by JOHN SMITH 2018-05-04_113534.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App sent on
1-5 of 55 item(s)	Date	Created by	Created for	Report #	Status	_	/iew all	05/04/2018 by JOHN SMITH 2018-05-04_113534.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App sent on 05/04/2018 by HANNAH LAWSON
All Expenses 1-5 of 55 item(s) Report Title Jul 2016		Created by Hannah Lawson	Created for MATT SMITH	Report # 1001	Status In Accounting	_	Actions	05/04/2018 by JOHN SMITH 2018-05-04_113534.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App sent on 05/04/2018 by HANNAH LAWSON 2018-05-04_113422.jpeg
1-5 of 55 item(s) Report Title	06/30/2017	Hannah Lawson	MATT SMITH			Total	Actions	05/04/2018 by JOHN SMITH 2018-05-04_113534.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App sent on 05/04/2018 by HANNAH LAWSON 2018-05-04_113422.jpeg
I-5 of 55 item(s) Report Title Jul 2016	06/30/2017 06/27/2017	Hannah Lawson	MATT SMITH MATT SMITH	1001	In Accounting	Total \$12.16	Actions	05/04/2018 by JOHN SMITH 2018-05-04_113534.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App sent on 05/04/2018 by HANNAH LAWSON 2018-05-04_113422.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App cent on CALL OFFICE Page 1 of 1 (FECT)
1-5 of 55 item(s) Report Title Jul 2016 06/15/2016 - 06/30/2016	06/30/2017 06/27/2017 06/27/2017	Hannah Lawson Hannah Lawson Hannah Lawson	MATT SMITH MATT SMITH MATT SMITH	1001 993 992	In Accounting In Accounting	Total \$12.16 \$243.01	Actions	05/04/2018 by JOHN SMITH 2018-05-04_113534.jpeg Uploaded via Mobile App sent on 05/04/2018 by HANNAH LAWSON 2018-05-04_113422.jpeg

3. Unmatched transactions display in the Expense Items table in red flag status (♥) and only the **Move** icon is available in the **Actions** column. The **Item** column displays the default expense item in a drop-down menu (in the example below, it is labeled **Please Select**). Use the drop-down menu to select the correct expense item. Then, click **Save**.

	Expe	ense Iter	ms								
Ex	pense	ltem :	Select Expe	nse Item 🔹	Add						List Detail
Γ		Status	Date 🔻 🔺	ltem 🔹 🔺		Vendor 🔻 🔺	Туре 🔹 🔺	Qty 🔹 🔺	Amount 🔻 🔺	Line Total [Pre-Paid]	Actions
		۲	03/07/2018	Please Select	•	OFFICE SUPPLY STORE	-	10.00	100.6100	\$1.61	⊑ ≱
	Delet			ense(s) Select Re		▼ Move			Enter	ed Expense To	otal: \$8,113.49
	Save	Sul	bmit C	lear Entries	Cancel						

4. The expense item may not change to green-flag status, but now you have all options to edit the expense report. Repeat this process for all unmatched expense items.

Exp	ense Iter	ms							
Expens	e Item :	Select Expe	ense Item	▼ Add				L	.ist Detail
	Status	Date 🔻 🔺	ltem ▼ ▲	Vendor 🔻 🔺	Туре ▼ ▲	Qty 🔹 🔺	Amount 🔻 🔺	Line Total [Pre-Paid]	Actions
	۲	03/07/2018	Office & Computer Supplies 🔹	OFFICE SUPPLY STORE	Supplies (Office & Computer) 🚍	10.00	100.6100	\$1.61	2 🗟 🖻 🛦
Dele Sav		bmit (Clear Entries Cancel				Entere	d Expense To	tal: \$100.61

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Correct Comdata Mastercard Transactions by Batch

As an Administrator, you can monitor all imported Comdata Mastercard transactions through the Expense Import Summary by Batch page. Use this page to view matched and unmatched credit card transactions by daily batches and make corrections as necessary.

 On the main menu, select Travel & Expense > Expense Import Summary by Batch.

Fravel & Expense 👻 Repo	rts 👻 Spend Manager	- \$-
Manage/Search	Filters	Approve/Recon-
Expense Dashboard	Open Expenses	cile
Expense Drafts	Old Expenses	Pending Approval
Search Expenses	All Expenses	Approval History
My Cards		Pending Reconcilia- tion
Manage Card Service Requests		Reconciled Expenses
Expense Import Summary by Batch Im		Card Service Reques Approvals
Expense Import Summary by User		

2. The Import Summary by Batch page opens with a table list of all batches. Each batch displayed on this page contains up to 24 hours of posted transactions. Click a batch ID to view transaction details.

Note: Use the Filter button () to narrow the results in the table. Use the More Actions button to export selected rows or the entire table to an Excel spreadsheet.

۲.	-								More Actions
Lis	t of Batcl	nes							
	Batch ID	Date of Batch	# of Transactions	# of Transactions Pending	# of Transactions with Exceptions	# of Transactions on Drafts/Reports	# of Transactions Archived	Batch Total Amount	Batch User Coun
	44697	05/10/2018	116	113	3	0	0	\$13080.78	116
	44498	05/08/2018	181	0	6	175	0	\$89431.62	145
	44294	05/07/2018	218	0	7	211	0	\$71441.67	145
	44079	05/06/2018	362	0	362	0	0	\$65350.60	145
	44075	05/05/2018	362	0	12	350	0	\$65350.60	145
	43868	05/04/2018	286	0	9	277	0	\$24543.17	145
	43667	05/03/2018	230	0	7	223	0	\$30837.89	145
	43469	05/03/2018	123	0	4	119	0	\$13043.90	123
	43270	05/01/2018	213	0	6	207	0	\$32903.12	145
	43079	04/30/2018	306	0	10	296	0	\$76835.47	145
	10077	04/20/2019	271	0	271	0	•	¢75774 0E	1.45
					🚧 📢 Page 1 🛛 of	f24 🗰 🖬 20 🔻		Sh	owing 1 - 20 of 473 iten

- 3. The Card Transaction Detail page opens with info on each transaction in the batch. Transactions that enter unmatched will be in **Exception** status and the **Exception Type** column explains the reason for the exception. If the transaction is in **Processed** status, edits can be applied only from the Edit Expense Report page. Select a row(s) using the check boxes in the far left column and then select the **More Actions** drop-down to perform one of the following actions:
 - **Archive.** Archives the transaction so it cannot be edited or submitted. Note that this does not delete the transaction from Expense Track.
 - **Reprocess.** Sends the transaction for reprocessing to add to an expense report.
 - Edit Transactions. Assign the transaction(s) to an existing user or expense item.
 - Create Users. Create a new user and assign them to an expense item.
 - **Export current view.** Export all selected rows to an Excel spreadsheet.
 - Export All Rows. Export all rows to an Excel spreadsheet.

Li	st of Tran	sactions										1 rows selected
	ID	Transaction Date	Post Date	Employee ID	User	CC Name	Transaction Amount	Transaction Number	Merchant	Expense ltem	Exception Type	Status
•	2658934	05/03/2018	05/04/2018			CUSTID1	\$9.40	00007218518050	SERVICE FEE	Please Select	A transaction with this transaction number already exists in the system. User_ID could not be mapped in the system.	Exception
	2658933	05/03/2018	05/04/2018	Wo20392	Fred Smith	CUSTID2	\$9.40	00007218418050	SERVICE FEE	Please Select	A transaction with this transaction number already exists in the system.	Exception
	2658932	05/03/2018	05/04/2018	Wi20391	Casey Watson	CUSTID3	\$9.40	00007218018050	SERVICE FEE	Please Select	A transaction with this transaction number already	Exception

4. For this example, we selected a transaction missing a user ID and then selected Edit Transactions to fix the discrepancy. This opens the Edit Transaction window. From here, enter the correct expense item and user ID. Be aware that you must enter an existing user ID and spell the name correctly. Click Submit when the error is fixed.

(continued on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Edit Transaction			×
Select a User	Start typing a name		
Select an Expense Item	Please Select		
		Clear All Subm	it

 Return to the Card Transaction Detail page to see the credit card transaction tied to a user. Notice that the user has been added but the transaction is still in Exception status. Select **Reprocess** from the **More Actions** drop-down to send the item for processing onto an expense draft. If successful, the status will change to **Processed**.

Note: To view detailed information on a transaction, either click the transaction ID in the ID

List of Transactions												
	ID	Transaction Date	Post Date	Employee ID	User	CC Name	Transactior Amount	Transaction Number	Merchant	Expense Item	Exception Type	Status
	2658934	05/03/2018	05/04/2018		Chase Cove	CUSTID1	\$9.40	00007218518050	SERVICE FEE	Business Services	A transaction with this transaction number already exists in the system.	Exception
	2658933	05/03/2018	05/04/2018	Wo20392	Fred Smith	CUSTID2	\$9.40	00007218418050	SERVICE FEE	Please Select	A transaction with this transaction number already exists in the system.	Exception
	2658932	05/03/2018	05/04/2018	Wi20391	Casey Watson	CUSTID3	\$9.40	00007218018050	SERVICE FEE	Please Select	A transaction with this transaction number already exists in the system.	Exception

column or select a check box and then click the eye icon (

Correct Comdata Mastercard Transactions by User

The Expense Import Summary by User page allows you to review imported Comdata Mastercard data that has been associated to a user. If you grant a user permission to view this page, they will see only their transactions. As an Administrator, this page is similar to the Expense Import Summary by Batch page, but includes the total amount spent in each batch.

 On the Expense Track main menu, select Travel & Expense > Expense Import Summary by User.

Travel & Expense - Repor	rts 👻 Spend Manager 👻	\$ -
Manage/Search Expense Dashboard	Filters Open Expenses	Approve/Recon- cile
Expense Drafts Search Expenses	Old Expenses All Expenses	Pending Approval Approval History
My Cards	Sur Expenses	Pending Reconcilia- tion
Manage Card Service Requests		Reconciled Expenses
Expense Import Summary by Batch		Card Service Request Approvals
Expense Import Summary by User 👆		

2. The Import Summary by User page opens with a table list of all transactions grouped into batches. Similar to the Import Summary by Batch page, each batch contains up to 24 hours of your posted transactions. Click a link in the Batch ID column to view a batch's transaction details.

۲.	-							More Actions
.ist	t of Batcl	hes						
	Batch ID	Date of Batch	# of Transactions	# of Transactions Pending	# of Transactions with Exceptions	# of Transactions on Drafts/Reports	# of Transactions Archived	Batch Total Amount
	46139	05/17/2018	2	2	0	0	0	\$137.86
	45936	05/16/2018	2	2	0	0	0	\$13.88
	45733	05/15/2018	2	2	0	0	0	\$91.12
	45532	05/14/2018	2	2	0	0	0	\$129.30
	45316	05/13/2018	3	0	3	0	0	\$555.94
	45312	05/12/2018	3	3	0	0	0	\$555.94
	45108	05/11/2018	2	2	0	0	0	\$201.53
	44902	05/10/2018	2	2	0	0	0	\$109.44
	44697	05/10/2018	1	1	0	0	0	\$138.00
	44498	05/08/2018	2	0	0	2	0	\$857.32
	11201	05/07/2019	2	^	Page 1 of 5 🕨 ₩	n	0	\$256.22

Expense Track Administrator Guide

 The Card Transaction Detail page opens with info on each transaction in the batch for each of your users. You can perform the same edits here as mentioned in the <u>Correct</u> <u>Comdata Mastercard Transactions by Batch</u> section.

Lis	st of Tran	nsactions										
	ID	Transactioı Date	Post Date	Employee ID	User	CC Name	Transactic Amount	Transactioı Number	Merchant	Expense ltem	Exception Type	Status
	278122	05/14/2018	05/16/2018	Wa20386	Michael Watts	CUSTID2	\$25.00	0002687001805	BURGER SPOT	Meals		Processed
	278122	05/14/2018	05/16/2018	Wa20385	Nancy Wallace	CUSTID3	\$172.64	0002686991805	BURGER SPOT	Meals		Processed
	278122	05/15/2018	05/16/2018	Vi20384	Dan Smith	CUSTID1	\$20.99	0001338211805	RETAILER	Business Services		Processed
	278122	05/15/2018	05/16/2018	Vi20383	Jane Smith	CUSTID2	\$5.35	0004990631805	MART	Fuel		Processed
0	278122	05/14/2018	05/16/2018	Va20382	Vance Jones	CUSTID3	\$259.35	0002722691805	CAR RENTAL	Car Rental		Processed
0	278122	05/15/2018	05/16/2018	Th20381	Ken Kenson	CUSTID1	\$12.22	0004734911805	GROCERY STORE	Meals		Processed
)	278122	05/14/2018	05/16/2018	Sw20380	Terry Rock	CUSTID2	\$25.00	0001907921805	AIRLINE	Airfare		Processed
0	278122	05/14/2018	05/16/2018	Sw20379	Julia Sweeney	CUSTID3	\$4.86	0001085951805	BURGER SPOT	Meals		Processed
0	278122	05/15/2018	05/16/2018	Su20378	Jason Sudeikis	CUSTID1	\$65.85	0002617551805	ONLINE SUBSCRIPTION	Dues & Subscriptions		Processed

The Delegate User feature of Expense Track allows your users to assign other users as delegates to manage their expense reports. As an Expense Track Administrator, you can assign one user as a Delegate for one or multiple other users. This feature is useful if a user is out of the office or never accesses the website to manage their expenses. Follow the steps below to set up a Delegate user.

Note: Permission 4120 - Manage User Delegates must be selected to use this feature.

1. On the Expense Track home page, select the Setting icon (****) > Users > User Delegates.



2. Complete each field to set up the Delegate user. See field descriptions below. Note that each field is a typeahead field, meaning if you enter a few letters or numbers, matching results will display.

Note: If you enter values in the **Individual Users**, **User Groups**, and **Location Groups** fields, or a combination of two of the fields, the Delegate user will have access to each user within the selected segments.

For example, if you enter Group A and Group B in **User Groups**, and Location A and Location B in **Location Groups**, the Delegate user will be assigned to each user in each group.

(see image on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Manage User Delegat	es
User	User's First or Last Name
Can Act On	Expenses v
As a Delegate for	Specify Below 🔻
Individual Users	Start Typing Username
User Groups	Start Typing User Group Name
Location Groups	Start Typing Location Group Name
	Update Cancel

Field	Description
User	Enter the user ID of the Delegate user.
Can Act On	Expenses is the only option in this field, as this is the only task
	Delegate users can perform for other others.
As a Delegate For	• Specify Below: Select this option if you will enter users in the
	Individual Users, User Groups, and/or Location Groups fields.
	• All Users: Select this option to delegate the user to all other users in the system. For example, if an accountant associate needs to access all users' expenses to help them understand the process of creating and submitting expense reports, select this option.
Individual Users	Enter one or multiple users IDs.
User Groups	Enter one or multiple user groups.
Location Groups	Enter one or multiple location groups.

Expense Track

3. Click **Update** at the bottom of the page. The Delegate User is now assigned to the user(s) you selected.

Manage User Delegat	es
Update Successful User Delegates were successful	y updated.
User	User's First or Last Name
Can Act On	Expenses 🔻
As a Delegate for	Specify Below
Individual Users	Start Typing Username
User Groups	Start Typing User Group Name
Location Groups	Start Typing Location Group Name
	Update Cancel

Approve Expense Reports

Once a user submits a draft expense report, it must go through approval at your company's management level. Review each report to ensure there are no issues. You can approve an entire expense report or each expense item in a report. You should have defined approval rules during the expense track set up process.

Select a task below for more details:

Approve Expenses

Approving Expense Reports

Use this section to understand how to approve expense reports. You can approve an entire report or each specific expense item in a report. Also, note that you can approve expense reports within the Expense Track website or from the notification email.

- <u>Approve Expense Reports in the Website</u>
- <u>Approve Expense Reports from Notification Email</u>

Approve Expense Reports in the Website

- **1.** There are two ways to access expense reports for approval:
 - Select Travel & Expense > Pending Approval.

Travel & Expense 👻 🄅	Ŧ	
Manage/Search	Filters	Approve/Recon- cile
Expense Dashboard	Open Expenses	
Expense Drafts	Old Expenses	Pending Approval
Search Expenses	All Expenses	Approval History
My Cards		Card Service Request Approvals
Manage Card Service Requests		Αμμιοναίς
Expense Import Summary by User		

• Alternatively, under the Tasks section, select **Expense Reports to Approve**.



Expense Track Administrator Guide

 On the Expenses Reports to Approve page, click an Expense Report # from the Documents Pending Approval list. If you have a large list of reports, use the Filter (
 option at the top of the page to quickly locate a report.

Note: You can approve and decline expense reports from this page. Select one or multiple expense reports using the checkboxes in the left column, then click either **Approve** (

I() **D** = - **I(** = -

Da	cuments Pendin	g Approval						
	Туре	Expense Report # 🔦	Report Title	From	Creation Date	Location	Waiting for Approval	Amount
	Expense Report	1047	Feb 2017 - 2	Test User 1	07/26/2017 10:16 AM	Comdata	201 day(s)	\$1844.88
	Expense Report	1158	04/01/2017 - 04/15/2017	Test User 2	10/13/2017 09:43 AM	Comdata	122 day(s)	\$292.02
	Expense Report	1202	February 2017	Test User 3	11/16/2017 02:54 PM	Comdata	87 day(s)	\$309.88

If you decline an expense report, you are required to provide a reason for the decline. Your message will be sent to the expense requester.

ExpenseTrack	Travel & Expense 👻 💼	marta 🗰				🔄 📰 Jennifer Hamp
		Please provide a reas	on for declining.			
Expense Rep	orts to Appi					
τ-						
Documents Pending	Approval			li li		1 rows selected 🔺
🗆 Туре	Expense Repor #				Waiting for Approval	Amount
Expense Report	33318			Decline	526 day(s)	\$1691.57
25 v per page						1 - 1 of 1
		ාර Approve	ත Return	P Decline		

3. The Expense Report Approval page opens. This page provides a detailed view of the expense report items. A brief overview of the report is given at the top of the page, followed by a list of all expense items, and ending with the Notes, FYI Notifications, and Edit Approval Routing sections. Review each detail on the expense report, including each expense item.

ate created 7/26/2017		7 Feb 2017 - 2		Created for Steven Harris	Expe \$ 1,97	ise total	Approve \$ 1,844.8			
xpense advan	ce	Project		HIDE		structions	Commer			
lo nternal attach	iments									
Detailed Appr	roval for Expen	se Report #1047							1-13 of 13 iter	ns processed
Alerts	Date	Expense		Max amount	Actual Amount	Pre-paid amount	Approved amount	Qty.	Total expense	Approve?
٣	02/13/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1-10.' 541005:) (1-10.1250-10-550271: 2 C *	1250-10-	\$ 0.00	\$ 314.40	\$ 0.00	\$ 314.40	1.00000	\$ 314.40	¥
April 2016 Rece	eipts_2.pdf (Note	es: April 2016 Receipts_2	2.pdf)							
٣	02/15/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1-10./ 541005:) (1-10.1250-10-550271: 2 34 *	1250-10-	\$ 0.00	\$ 186.40	\$ 0.00	\$ 186.40	1.000000	\$ 186.40	
Appr	oval Notes									.//
										le.
									Clear entries	Proce
iscussio	n Notes								+ A	dd Note
ent By	Sent To	Date Sent	Subject		Note					Reply
annah Lawson	Test User 1, Test User 2	11/28/2017 03:54 PM	Expense l	tems	Please revie	w for accuracy.				ţ
		ons	E	dit Approva						
	Votificati					eston				
ser	Notificati	Remove?		Rule 5093-5093: 1_Roi		23(011				A 44 4
ser ist User 1	Notificati	Remove?		1 Hannah Lawson (
	Notificati	Remove?								~~ > ~~ >

The top portion of the page provides a high level description of the expense report, including details such as the create date, total amount, and approved amount.

Expense Report #	1317 Apr 2017 💿				Clear entries Process
Date created 02/13/2018	Created by Hannah Lawson	Created for Steven Harris	Expense total \$ 2,338.69	Approved total \$ 2,029.90	
Expense advance No	Project	HIDE	OR instructions	Comments	
Internal attachments					

4. Under the Detailed Approval for Expense Report section, review each expense item.

Alerts	Date	Expense	Max amount	Actual Amount	Pre-paid amount	Approved amount	Qty.	Total expense	Approv
۴	02/13/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1-10.1250-10- 541005) (1-10.1250-10-5502715;):	\$ 0.00	\$ 314.40	\$ 0.00	\$ 314.40	1.000000	\$ 314.40	۲
ril 2016 Red	eipts_2.pdf (Not	es: April 2016 Receipts_2.pdf)							
٣	02/15/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1-10.1250-10- 541005:) (1-10.1250-10-5502715:): 2 ℃ *	\$ 0.00	\$ 186.40	\$ 0.00	\$ 186.40	1.000000	\$ 186.40	8

 To approve an expense item, select the checkbox under the Approve? column. Declined items should remain unselected; if you have declined expense items, you can still process the report, but those declined items will not be processed for approval. Select the check box under Approve? to select all of the expense items in the list for approval.

Note:

- If you decline an expense item, all details on the item will remain, such as any attached receipts, notes, and accounts coding information.
- The Alerts column identifies the status of the expense item: green flag item is ready for approval, yellow flag item is not in compliance but can still be approved.
- The Approved Amount and Quantity columns may be open for editing, but you cannot edit these columns for Comdata Corporate Mastercard transactions.

(continued on next page)

Use the Expense column to perform additional functions.

Detailed Ap	proval for Exp	ense Report #1047
Alerts	Date	Expense
*	02/13/2017	Airfare E Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1- 10.1250-10-541005:) (1-10.1250-10-5502715:): 2 3 *
April 2016 Re	eceipts_2.pdf (N	Notes: April 2016 Receipts_2.pdf)
۴	02/15/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1- 10.1250-10-541005:) (1-10.1250-10-5502715:):
April 2016 Re	eceipts_5.pdf (N	lotes: April 2016 Receipts_5.pdf)

- To edit or split the coding of an expense item, click the edit (
 ✓) icon or split (
 ✓) icon.
 Note: If an expense item contains splits, the account code cannot be edited.
- Any attached receipts can be viewed from this page by selecting the PDF attachment link immediately under the item's details.
- For detailed information on each expense item, click the item name under the Expense column. This opens the Expense Item Approval page.
- If applied by your Administrator, an **Expand/Collapse** button may display by the **Account Code** field. Click this button to view the entire account code and descriptions of each segment.

(continued on next page)

The Expense Item Approval page allows you to view each expense item's details, such as accounts coding splits, itemizations, credit card data, and receipts all in one screen.

👻 Busin Status: 🗸		\$ \$103.30	Mike Jo	ones, E	xpense Rep	oort # 203 [,]	4	1 of 1 expense	es ⊀	> Reti	urn to report		eject k to ad	✓ Appr d attachme	
Expense name Business Servic		Expense type Business Services		Purpo note	ose * es here						F.		0 19-38:29		
Vendor Name WWW.ONLINE. Transaction Da		Payment type Comdata Posting date 05/28/2018		No Merch	nal expense nant address DUTH GRAND S	T						4-0601118 1/2/06/1100 1/2/06/1100 1/2/06/20/00 4-02/20/06 4-02/20/06 4-02/20/06 4-02/20/06 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-02/20 4-0			
Merchant Cate 7392	gory Code	Account Code 300~6010			88888, CA 9007				<		CERT OND Act : scenes Act : scenes CRB NU OL/32/12 0 19:38-60 1	A ALLA AND I ALLA AND HOLA ALL TAX TODEP OFFICE DEALES MEER OF ITEMS NOT TODEP NE 7 TO TO TODEP AND TO TODEP ALLA AND TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO			>
Requested amo Requested quar			ed amount: ed quantity		00						M Austi-sou GL-2014 DEBLT Aufterig Termit 7 Beist CAR Cost back	INCO FOOL DITA # C Dita # C Di	44.51 -4.51		
Account Code 🥖	, od				Coding note	Amount	Percei	ntage	At	ttached by	Mike Jones or Notes:		/2019	11:47:47 A	Μ
		- Office Expense) G					.3000	1.0000			•				
Product Code	Description OTHER MISCELL	ANEOUS TRANS	Quantity 1.0000	Product	t Price - Net Du \$10	3.30 Product	: Total Cost - I	\$103.30							

To edit or split accounts coding, click on the edit (\checkmark) or split (\asymp) icon located next to **HIDE**. When a split is applied, it will appear under the **HIDE** section and the edit icon will disappear.

Note: To view non-split account code details, click the edit icon.

HIDE >\$	Coding note	Amount	Percentage	
1-10.1250-10-541005 Job Expense - no GL	Test	\$93.2000	0.5	
1-10.1250-10-5502715 Job Expense - no GL	Test	\$93.2000	0.5	

View and scroll through receipts images on the right side of the page and download and print them as needed. You can also attach receipt images if one is missing by using the **Click to Add Attachment** button. If the attachment is not an image or PDF, a download icon will display.

Once all information has been verified, you can reject or approve the item by selecting the **Reject** or **Approve** buttons located on the top right side of the page. You can also move to the previous or next expense item by clicking on the left and right (< >) arrows at the top of the page, as well as returning to the expense report by clicking **Return to report**.

5. Back on the Expense Report Approval page, scroll down to the **Note to Requestor** and **Approval Notes** fields below the Detailed Approval for Expense Report section.

Use the **Note to Requestor** field to enter information for the user that submitted the report. Your notes will be sent to the user through the Messages feature and/or email after saving. For example, if you change the reimbursement amount, you can alert the user through the requestor notes. Use the **Approval Notes** field to enter a note for multiple approvers involved in the approval process. When a note is added, other approvers in the route can view the notes entered in the field.

Note: Clicking **Clear Entries** only resets the values entered in the **Approved Amount**, **Quantity**, **Approval Notes**, and **Note to Requestor** fields.

Notes to Requestor		
		11
Approval Notes		
	Clear entries	Process

6. The bottom of the Expense Report Approval page holds the Discussion Notes, FYI Notifications, and Approval Routing sections. See the following pages to understand how to use each section.

Discussion Notes + Add Note							e
Sent By	Sent To	Date Sent	Subject		Note	Rep	oly
Hannah Lawson	Test User 1, Test User 2	11/28/2017 03:54 PM	Expense Items		Please review for accuracy.	5	
Send FYI Notifications				Edit Approval Routing			
User Remove?			Rule 5093-5093: 1_Route to Manager_Preston				
Test User 1			1 Hannah Lawson (active)		~~	×	
Test User 2			2 Test User 1 (open)		~~	· ×	
				3 Test User 2 (open)		^ ~	×
				Add New User	+ Add		
Add New User		+ Add					

Notes: Use the **Discussion Notes** section to enter notes on the expense report for other users to view. For example, if multiple people need to approve the expense report, you can send a note to other approvers in the route to inform them on something related to the report. Each user will immediately see the note and be able to reply to it by clicking the **Reply** button ().

Click Add Note to start.

Discussion Notes					+ Add N
Sent By	Sent To	Date Sent	Subject	Note	R
Hannah Lawson	Test User 1, Test User 2	11/28/2017 03:54 PM	Expense Items	Please review for accuracy.	+

Enter the user's name, subject line, and note. Click **Submit** when finished, which will generate an internal message that will notify all included users of your note. Add as many notes as necessary.

Note: You can leave the **To User** field blank and still add the note for yourself, if necessary.

Add Note		
To User	Test User 1 X Start typing a name	
Subject	Expenses	
Note*	For your approval	
	Reset Subn	nit
- a) Click inside the Add New User field.
- **b)** Enter a name in the field and select the username that appears in the search result, then click **Add**.

Send FYI Notifications	
No FYI notifications found	
test	+ Add
TEST (test@msn.com)	

c) The user will be added to receive an FYI notification. Add as many users as necessary.

Send FYI Notifications	S
User	Remove?
TEST	×
Add New User	+ Add

d) To delete a user, click the * under **Remove?**. A dialogue box will display to confirm you want to delete the user. Click **OK** to confirm.

Are you sure you want to delete this FYI Notification?	
Cancel	ОК

Approval Routing: Use the **Approval Routing** section to view each user in the approval route. A user with the word "active" next to their name is the current approver. The user with the word "open" next to their name needs to approve the report. A user with the word "closed" next to their name has approved the report.

When adding users to the approver route, note the following:

- A new approver can only be inserted after the current active approver.
- The current approver or any previous approver cannot be moved up or down.
- Only the user who added the approver can delete the added approver.
- When there are multiple rules in effect, the selection of the approver under the rule determines where the approver should go in the rule chain.

~~ ×
~~ ×
∧∨ ×

To add a user to the approval route:

- a) Click inside the Add New User field.
- **b)** Enter a name in the field and select the username that appears in the search result, then click **Add**.
- c) The user will be added to the routing. To change the order of the routing, use the up and down arrows ($\sim \sim$). The user at the top of the list is first in line to approve.

Edit Approval Routing		
Rule 5093-5093: 1_Route to Manager_Preston		
1 Hannah Lawson (active)		∧∨ ×
test	+ Add	
TEST (test@msn.com)		
	·	

7. Return to the Expense Report Approval page and ensure everything is accurate. If so, click **Process** either at the top of the page or below **Approval Notes**.

Note: If reimbursing an employee, the expense total cannot exceed the sum of each expense item.

Expense	Report #10	047 Feb 2017 - 2 😨						Clear entries	Process
Date create 07/26/2017	d	Created by Hannah Lawson	Create Steven			ense total 976.71		pproved total 1,844.88	
Expense ad v No	vance	Project	HIDE		OR	instructions	c	omments	
Internal att	achments								
Detailed A	pproval for Exp	pense Report #1047						1-2 of 2 iter	ns processed
Alerts	Date	Expense	Max amount	Actual Amount	Pre-paid amount	Approved amount	Qty.	Total expense	Approve?
۶	02/13/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1- 10.1250-10-541005:) (1-10.1250-10-5502715:): → Ct *	\$ 0.00	\$ 314.40	\$ 0.00	\$ 314.40	1.00000	\$ 314.40	×
April 2016 R	Receipts_2.pdf (N	Notes: April 2016 Receipts_2.pd	f)						
۴	02/15/2017	Airfare Expense type : Travel Vendor: ALASKA A Account Code :(1- 10.1250-10-541005:) (1-10.1250-10-5502715:):	\$ 0.00	\$ 186.40	\$ 0.00	\$ 186.40	1.00000	\$ 186.40	۷
April 2016 R	Receipts_5.pdf (N	Notes: April 2016 Receipts_5.pd	f)						
	Notes to Reque	estor							-
								/	
	Approval Note	s							
									\$
								Clear entries	Process

Expe	nse Approval	
0	Process Request? You will approve 2 expenses and reject 0 expenses.	
	Cancel Submit	

9. A message displays confirming that the expense report has been approved, including all approved expense items, and you are returned to the Expense Reports to Approve page.

' (~		rts to Approve (
_	ocuments Pending Ap	proval						
	Туре	Expense Report #	Report Title	From	Creation Date	Location	Waiting for Approval	Amount
	Expense Report	1019	02/01/2017 - 02/07/2017	Test User 1	07/07/2017 03:36 PM	Comdata	130 day(s)	\$30.65
	Expense Report	1153	Sept 2017 - Quick Report	Test User 2	10/10/2017 08:38 AM	Comdata	132 day(s)	\$348.98
	Expense Report	1183	October 2017_2	Test User 3	11/03/2017 08:05 AM	Comdata	109 day(s)	\$23.30
	Expense Report	1210	Trip	Test User 4	11/22/2017 10:30 AM	Comdata	67 day(s)	\$21.60
	Expense Report	1316	Feb 2017	Test USer 5	02/13/2018 01:11 PM	Comdata	7 day(s)	\$785.98

Approve Expense Reports from the Notification Email

If you are responsible for approving one or more users' expense reports, you will receive an email notification whenever they submit a draft report. The email includes all details on the report, including the report title, total amount, each individual expense item (line item), and any coding applied. You can approve the expense report right form the email, which is convenient if you can't access the website.

Once you approve the email, you will receive a response email displaying your approval activity.

You can approve expense reports from the notification email, by doing one of the following:

• You can approve and decline individual line items by entering "x" or "y" (approve) or "n" decline in the brackets within the line item details. For example:

(1)[x]... 1/EA1 Meals & Entertainment @ \$24.67 (ID9642) 1001-7500-1401-70310 (100%) Fraudulent Charge? No

- You can also approve or decline individual line items by adding your decision to the end of the line ID. For example: (ID9642=YES) (ID9643=NO).
- If your instance of Expense Track is set up for default approval (such as all line items are approved by default), reply to the email with no comments. The system will approve or decline the report based on your defaults.
- To Approve the entire Expense Report, reply to the email with "YES" or "Y" in the first line of your reply. To decline the entire Expense Report, reply to the email with "NO" or "N" in the first line of your reply.
- Avoid using special characters in any of your replies. Incorrect values will cause an error and send the email back to the report submitter.

(see examples emails on next page)



Approval Notification Email



Approval Response Email

Dear FALLO :

This is processing feedback on your recent approval e-mail referencing Expense Report 1490 from HOBENDRINK ANDREW 3487

You have APPROVED:

(ID18794)...1 Hotel = \$ 518.96 (ID18795)...1 Hotel = \$ 607.75 (ID18802)...1 Meals & Entertainment = \$ 22.71 (ID18797)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 25.77 (ID18806)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18796)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 6.00 (ID18801)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18800)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18793)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 72.00 (ID18807)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 12.20 (ID18799)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18804)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18805)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 8.20 (ID18803)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18798)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80 (ID18808)...1 Travel - Other = \$ 5.80

If you do not recognize items or believe that this does not reflect your approval response please contact your administrator immediately. No further action on your part is required otherwise.

Reconcile Expense Reports

Reconciling and releasing an expense report is the final step before the expense can be reimbursed to an employee or returned to your company's accounting system. This step occurs after all required receipts have been checked off and settled in the web portal. Once an expense is reconciled, it is marked as Fully Released, meaning everything on the report was accurate and can be added to accounting. This process is usually completed by someone in your accounting department.

The following steps are involved with reconciling expenses:

- <u>Reconcile Expense Reports</u>
- Manage Reconciled Expense Reports

Reconcile Expense Reports

The reconcile process involves comparing the expense receipts with the expense report and releasing the expense for payment. Your company's accounts payable department typically completes this function. Depending on your Administrator's decision, you may be restricted to reconcile your own expenses or expenses by other users.

 From the Expense Track main menu, select Travel & Expense > Pending Reconciliation.

Travel & Expense 🗸	Reports 👻 Spend Mana	ager 👻 🔆 👻
Manage/Search		Approve/Recon- cile
Expense Dashboa	rd Open Expenses	Pending Approval
Expense Drafts	Old Expenses	0.11
Search Expenses	All Expenses	Approval History
My Cards		Pending Reconcilia- tion
Manage Card Serv Requests	vice	Reconciled Expenses
Expense Import Summary by Batcl	h	Card Service Request Approvals
Expense Import Summary by User		

2. The Pending Reconciliation page offers many options to manage expense pending reconciliation. See the next page for more information on each feature.

Tr	ansactions					
	Display Name	Company	Report ID	Report Name	Total	Employee ID
	Ross, Robert	Office Inc	78208	Report 2	250	002360
	Foust, Heinrich	Office Inc	78172	Report 1	2500000	000574
	REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	75656	REED, JOSEPH - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	243.78	003250
	Dukes, Stephanie	Office Inc	73737	Dukes, Stephanie - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	501	003250
	REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	73450	REED, JOSEPH - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	1271.75	003250

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Option	Description				
	Filter the grid by specific criteria, such as company,				
Filter (employee ID, last approval date, and status.				
۶	Add or remove columns in the grid. There are a total of 14				
Customize View (columns you can customize to your preference.				
	Note: You can also click and drag columns around to				
	reorganize the grid.				
Save Current View (Save your applied filters and columns for a customized view				
Save current view ()	of the grid. You can save up to 15 customized views. Enter a				
	name for your view and then click the save icon (
	If you have selected one or multiple expenses from the				
Reconcile Selected Expense(s) (grid, click this option to directly reconcile the expense(s).				
More Actions (More Actions -	Provides the following options to manage pending				
More Actions (reconciliation expenses:				
	• Reconcile expense: Opens the Reconcile Expense page				
	where you can review each transaction in the expense				
	report and mark it as reconciled or declined.				
	• View Expense: Opens the Expense Report page where				
	you can review each transaction and reconcile or				
	decline line by line.				
	• Print Preview: Opens a printable version of the expense				
	report.				
	Mark as Released: Reconciles the entire expense report without reconciling each transaction. This stop				
	without reconciling each transaction. This step				
	manually releases the expense report, skipping the reconciliation process.				
	• Decline Expense: Declines the entire expense report for				
	reconciliation.				
	• Export Current View: Export all rows in the current				
	page view.				
	• Export all rows: Export all rows in the grid.				
	Note: A maximum of 5000 rows can be returned				
	when exporting to Excel.				
	when exporting to Excer.				

Transactions						C More Actions
I	Display Name	Company	Report ID	Report Name	Total	View expense Print preview Mark as released
I	Ross, Robert	Office Inc	78208	Report 2	250	Decline expense
I	Foust, Heinrich	Office Inc	78172	Report 1	2500000	Export current view
	REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	75656	REED, JOSEPH - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	243.78	Export all rows 003250
	Dukes, Stephanie	Office Inc	73737	Dukes, Stephanie - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	501	003250
	REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	73450	REED, JOSEPH - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	1271.75	003250

Note: If you select **Decline expense** from the **More Actions** drop-down, you must provide a reason for the decline.

∑ >E:	xper	ISE <mark>Track</mark> 🔒 Travel &	Are you sure you wan report(s)?	it to decline the selecte	d expense	. ×	Foust, Heinrich
	T	ending Reconcil	Reason for Declining Exp	ense Report			* = Inactive User More Actions - 1 rows selected
		Display Name	Cancel			Submit	Employee ID
	J	Ross, Robert			Coaing		002360
		Foust, Heinrich	Office Inc	78172	Report 1	2500000	000574
		REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	75656	REED, JASON - 05/01/ 2018- 05/31/ 2018	243.78	003250

4. The Reconcile Expense page opens. To reconcile or decline an expense, select the Receipt OK/Decline checkbox in the expense's row. Then, click Reconcile Expense or Decline Marked. The page will refresh and remove the transaction from the grid.

Expense Rep	oort # 73737-70095					1-	2 of 2 items pr	ocessed
ltem SKU (ID)	Description	Expense Amt.	Actual Cost [Pre-Paid]	Approved Amt.	Receipt OK/Decline ■	Quantity	Line Total	Note
General Expense (805634)	General Expense CERTIFICAT MRKETPLCE General Expensi - 05/03/2018 to ♪ ス 급 Purpose: Security plus Cert ♪ Expand/Collapse 1~5120.02		409.00 [0.00]	409.00		1	409.00	
	Battery.pdf (Notes: Battery.pdf)						
General Expense (805634)	General Expense ONLINE Mł PMTS W General Expense 05/05/2018 to 2 3 Purpose: Laptop Battery 2 Expand/Collapse 1~6330.08	92.0000	92.00 [0.00]	92.00		1	92.00	
	Battery.pdf (Notes: reciept)							
	Clear Entries	Recond	ile Expense		Ĩ	Decline Mar	ked	
ayment Refer	ence *	70095						
eneral Notes								
otes to Reque	estor							

The bottom of the Expense Reports page contains the expense report header details.

Expense Report Header EO Number 73737-70095 Туре Expense Order **Expense Report Number** 73737 Check To Foust Jennifer 35279 Office Inc Charge To Project **User Phone User Fax** User EMail Expense Total \$ 501.00 Instructions 05/16/2018 **Creation Date Date Completed** Notes Attachments

Expense Track Administrator Guide

5. Once you have declined or reconciled each transaction, you are returned to the Pending Reconciliation with the expense report removed. Continue this process for each expense report that requires reconciliation.

r -	• ● ع					* = Inacti More Action
ira	insactions					
	Display Name	Company	Report ID	Report Name	Total	Employee ID
1	Ross, Robert	Office Inc	78172	Report 2	2500000	000574
	REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	75656	REED, JOSEPH - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	243.78	003250
]	Dukes, Stephanie	Office Inc	73737	Dukes, Stephanie - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	501	003250
	REED, JOSEPH	Office Inc	73450	REED, JOSEPH - 05/01/2018- 05/31/2018	1271.75	003250

Manage Reconciled Expense Reports

Expense reports that have been released for payment display in the system for your viewing. You cannot make changes to a released expense report, but you can review its details and print it for your records. Also, note that you must have the appropriate permissions to access this feature. For access, contact your Administrator.

Note: If the expense report comes from a Comdata Mastercard transaction, the total amount is not reimbursable.

 On the Expense Track main menu, select Travel & Expense > Reconciled Expenses.



2. On the Reconciled Expenses page, select an expense report from the Released Expense Report List, and then click View Expense.

leased Expense Report List	Sort Expense Numb
ilter Keywords Submit	
56264, \$ 0.00, all receipts, released, Smith John 3994 56261, \$ 15.03, all receipts, released, Smith John 3994 56260, \$ 2500.00, all receipts, released, Smith John 3994 56235, \$ 50.00, all receipts, released, Wright Dana 3995 56234, \$ 0.00, all receipts, released, Wright Dana 3995	View Expense Print Preview Select Release Timespan Released From Released To

3. The Expense Detail page opens. Review the expense report and expense items as needed.

6/27/2	eated 018	Created by Smith, Jane	Create Smith,			ense total 500.00		proved total 500.00		
xpense lo	advance	Project	OR ins	tructions	Com	iments				
nterna	attachments									
N Click	to add attachn	nent.								
Detail: Alerts	for Expense R Date	eport #78172 Expense	Max amount	Actual Amount	Pre-paid amount	Approved amount	Qty.	Status	1-1 of 1 iten Released	s processed Total expense
۴	06/27/2018	General Expense Expense type : General Expense Vendor: Basware Account Code: Expand/Collapse 1~1056. 2~10.10001.~1 1~1056. 2~20.101141.~6	\$ 0.0000	\$ 2,500.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 2,500.0000	1.000000	approved	No	\$ 2,500.00
	ssion No	jpg (Notes: mobile-153012751	+ i i oʻlb8)						+ A	dd Note
	es found									
NO HOL										
				proval R	outing					
	FYI Notif	ications	VIEW AP							

4. Use the Expense column to perform additional functions.

Details f	Details for Expense Report #78172						
Alerts	Date	Expense					
		Expense ty Vendor:Co Account C 50% Job C	Expense ype : General Expense impany ode: Expand/Collapse Coding (2.0) 1 (1 – Company Inc)				
		Job	1056. 2 (1000. 2 - HEALTH EDUCATION CAMPUS - ENABLING)				
		Phase	10.10001. (10.10001 SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER)				
٣	06/27/2018	CostType	1 (1 - Labor)				
		50% lob (Coding (2.0)				
			1 (1 – Company Inc)				
		Job	1056. 2 (1000. 2 - HEALTH EDUCATION CAMPUS - ENABLING)				
		Phase	20.10141. (20.10141 BONDS)				
		CostType	6 (6 - Other Cost)				
		<i>₽</i> >\$ *					
mobile-15	530127514116.j	jpg (Notes: m	nobile-1530127514116.jpg)				

- To edit or split the coding of an expense item, click the edit (
 ✓) icon or split (
 ✓) icon.
 Note: If an expense item contains splits, you cannot edit the account code.
- Any attached receipts can be viewed from this page by selecting the PDF attachment link immediately under the item's details.
- For detailed information on each expense item, click the item name under the Expense column. This opens the Expense Item Approval page.
- If applied by your Administrator, an Expand/Collapse button may display by the Account Code field. Click this button to view the entire account code and descriptions of each segment.

Clicking a line item opens the Expense Item page. This page contains all details on the expense item, such as the receipt image, account coding splits, itemizations, and credit card transactions, if available.

Note: The **Discussion Notes**, **Send FYI Notifications**, and **View Approval Routing** display at the bottom of the Expense Report and Expense Item page.



Generate Reports

Expense Track contains a suite of standard, preformatted reports on your account activity and information. Use these reports for record keeping and to analyze specific aspects of your program, such as cardholder spending, submitted and approved expense reports, and details on your Expense Track users.

Click a link below to learn more.

- <u>Accessing and Running Reports</u>
- <u>Report Samples</u>

Accessing and Running Reports

Before you begin, it's important to understand how to access and run reports. There are many parameters and prompts that allow you to filter and customize the data in each report.

1. On the Expense Track home page, click **Spend Manager > Ad Hoc Reporting**.



2. On the Ad Hoc Reporting screen, select View > Repository.



3. In the Folders column, select Public > Standard Reports > Expenses.

🗉 Folders	Repo	ository							Sort By: Name	Iodified Date
🗐 Comdata	Run	Edit	Open	Сору	Cut	Paste	Delete			
= Public	0	Name				Descripti	on	Туре	Created D	Modified D
Ad Hoc Components										
🗐 Audit										
🗐 Custom										
🗐 Dashboards										
🗐 DataSources										
🗐 Diagnostic										
🗐 Input Controls										
🗐 Monitoring										
🗐 Standard Reports										
+ Assets										
🗐 Budgets										
🗐 Comdata										
Expenses										
Towentory U										
💼 Invoicing										
💼 Purchasing										
🗐 Travel and Expense										
🗐 Work Orders							There are no resources in the folder.			
Templates										
= Testing										
🗐 Verian										

Expense Track

4. To run a report, click a report name in the Repository list.

Rep	ository							Sort By: Name	Modified Date
Run	-	Open Copy	Cut	Paste	Delete				
D	Name	open copy		Descri			Туре	Created Da	Modified D.
	Approve	d Expense Repor	t	Approv	ved Expens	e Report	Report	January 27	11/16/2016
		d Expenses Repo					Report	January 27	6/24/2016
	Expense	Accounting Code	e Detail	Accour	nting Code	Detail Report	Report	May 11	May 9
	Expense	Accrual Report -	Aging In		-		Report	April 14	April 14
	Expense	Accrual Report -	Cardhold.				Report	April 14	April 14
	Expense	Accrual Report -	Cardhold.				Report	April 14	April 14
	Expense	Approver Detail		Approv	ver Detail R	eport	Report	May 11	May 9
	Expense	Approver Summ	ary	Approv	ver Summa	ry Report	Report	May 11	May 9
	Expense	Audit		Audit I	Report		Report	May 5	May 4
	Expense	Cost Allocation	Summary	Cost A	llocation Su	ummary Report	Report	May 12	May 11
	Expense	Default Coding E	By Cardho				Report	Yesterday	Yesterday
	Expense	Detail Report		Expen	se Detail Re	eport	Report	January 27	11/16/201
	Expense	Drafts Detail Rep	oort				Report	January 27	10/26/201
	Expense	Fuel Usage		Fuel U	sage Repor	t	Report	May 11	May 9
	Expense	Location Activity	,	Locatio	on Activity I	Report	Report	May 11	May 9
	Expense	Product Tax		Produc	t Tax Repo	rt	Report	May 5	May 4
	Expense	Spend Analysis	by MCC	Spend	Analysis b	y MCC Report	Report	May 5	May 4
	Expense	Summary Repor	t	Expen	se Summar	y Report	Report	January 27	11/16/2010
	Expense	Transaction Deta	il	Transa	action Detai	l Report	Report	Today	Today
	Expense	User Informatio	n	User I	nformation	Report	Report	May 11	May 4
	Out of C	ompliance Expen	ses Report	t Out of	Complianc	e Expenses Report	Report	January 27	10/14/2016
	Policy Vi	olation Alerts		Policy	Violation al	erts report	Report	April 11	March 16
	Product	Tax		Produc	t Tax Repo	rt	Report	May 3	May 2
	Receipt	Images Report					Report	January 27	9/12/2016
	Transact	ion Detail Report					Report	May 3	May 2

Expense Track Administrator Guide

5. In the Input Controls window, select the variables to run the report and then click **Apply** to generate the report. Then, click **OK** to close the window.

Note: The options in the Input Controls window will vary by report type.

* Start Date	
2017-04-17	
End Date	
2017-05-16	
Manager	
_	elected: 0
Search list	Q
AARON DAILEY	
ABBEY DEL ROSARIO	
ADAM HAFKEY	
Admin (7)	
AISHA STEINBER	
ALAN HARRIS	
ALAN STEINBERG	
ALFREDA TURNER	
ALICE ABLES	

6. The report will generate and display on screen. You have several options from here. See next page for field descriptions.

Note: If there is no information to display based on your entered criteria, the message "The report is empty" will display.

pense User Information		3:16:05 PM			
iack 🗄 🗸 🖹 🗸 🔶	> > > > < <p>< <p>< <p><</p></p></p>			- + 100% ▼ searc	h report 🔍 🗸 🔺
	on (From 2017-04-17 To 2017-0				
First Name	Last Name	Employee ID	User ID	User Email Address	Card Number
LESLIE	McCGLU	8KG88	shop@COM.COM	shop@COM.COM	556305*****888
DAVID	DAUW	8888888	wen@COM.COM	wen@COM.COM	
CORI	FORD	8888888	gard@com.com	gard@com.com	556305*****888
LISETTE	LAMON	8888888	rer@cor.com	rer@cor.com	556305*****888
SIDNEY	BISHOP	88F88	shy@COM.COM	shy@COM.COM	
MIKE	LAMON	8888888	mlamon@COM.COM		
HEATHE	HYDE	888888	hmcclu@COMD.COM	hmcclu@COMD.COM	
BEN	ROBE	8LR88	berts@COMD.COM	berts@COMD.COM	
LEIGH	GARD	8888888	ford@COM.COM	ford@COM.COM	556305*****888

(see field descriptions on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Option	Description
Save B.	Allows you to save the report in another folder within the
Jave	AdHoc Reporting application. For example, if you have another
	folder titled Comdata Reports, you can save your generated
	report into there. Selecting this option provides the
	opportunity to rename the report title and/or the report's
	description.
Export	Allows you to export and save the report in another format.
	Options include: PDF, Excel (paginated), Excel, CSV, docx, RTF,
	ODT, ODS, XLSL (paginated and non-paginated), and PPTX.
Undo/Redo/Undo All	If you make a change to the report (filter the column view,
♠	perform a search, etc.) you can undo or redo a change or undo
	all of your changes.
Edit (Options) 🖃	Opens the Input Controls window and allows you to change the
	data and rerun the report.
Zoom - + 100% -	Allows you to zoom in and out of the report on screen.
Search	Allows you to search the report for a specified keyword.
search report 🛛 🗸 🔹 🔺	
Refresh 🛷	Allows you to refresh the data in the report.

7. If you are done viewing the report, click the **Back** button (**Back**) in the top left-corner or return to the Repository view and make another report selection or exit the application.

Report Samples

See below for a list of available reports, their descriptions, input parameters, and report fields. This list will be updated as new reports are added. For image samples of reports, see the Expense Track Online Help.

- Expense Accounting Code Detail
- Expense Accrual Report Aging Information
- Expense Accrual Report Cardholder Detail
- <u>Expense Accrual Report Cardholder Summary</u>
- Expense Approver Detail
- Expense Approver Summary
- Expense Audit
- <u>Expense Cost Allocation Summary</u>
- Expense Default Coding by Cardholder
- <u>Expense Fuel Usage</u>
- <u>Expense Location Activity</u>
- Expense Policy Violation Alerts
- Expense Product Tax
- Expense Spend Analysis by MCC
- <u>Expense Transaction Coding</u>
- Expense Transaction Detail
- Expense User Information
- <u>Receipt Images Report</u>

Expense Accounting Code Detail

- **Description:** A list of cardholder transaction details by account code and customer ID. Use this report to analyze transaction details under each of your account codes and customer IDs.
- Input Controls: Posting Start Date, Posting End Date, Transaction Start Date, Transaction End Date, Cardholder, Expense Item, Coding Value Filters (Type1Seg -Type3Seg5)
- Fields: Account Code, Customer ID, Employee ID, Card Number, Last Name, First Name, Location Group, Location, Transaction Date, Posting Date, Expense Description, Vehicle Number, Reporting Level, Merchant Code, Merchant Name, Merchant Address, Merchant City, Merchant State, Merchant Zip, Merchant Group, Gallon, Status, Approval User, Approval Date, Export Status, Export Date, Card Transaction, Amount Coded, Transaction Amount, Credit Debit, Miscellaneous 1, Miscellaneous 2, Coding Type, company, Division, Department, GL Account
- Additional Notes: The Excel export does not automatically format columns with exported currency or number fields. Users will need to manually format these columns for the values to display correctly.

Expense Accrual Report - Aging Information

- **Description:** Totals by user of transactions not ready for export as of the date run for the dates and users specified in the input controls. Totals are shown in aging columns of 0-30, 31-60, 61-90, 90-120, and 120+.
- Input Controls: From Date, To Date, Users
- **Fields:** Card Number, User, Email Address, Aged (0-30), Aged (31-60), Aged (61-90), Aged (91-120), Total Outstanding, Manager/Approver, Manager/Approver Email
- Additional Notes: This report contains one line per user with totals separated by the aged columns. Also includes all transactions that have not been exported.

Expense Accrual Report - Cardholder Detail

- **Description:** A detailed list of each transaction by cardholder that is not ready for export (pending submission, pending approval, pending reconciliation, etc.) as of the date run for the dates and users specified in the input controls.
- Input Controls: From Date, To Date, Users

- Fields: Cardholder, Email Address, Account Number, Transaction, Merchant Name, Transaction Date, Post Date, MCC, MCC Description, Expense Description, Manager/Approver, Manager/Approver Email
- Additional Notes: This report contains one line for every transaction with coding. If the transaction contains split coding, it will display twice on the report with the split amount. Coding on this report is dependent on your accounts coding configuration. Also includes all transactions that have not been exported.

Expense Accrual Report - Cardholder Summary

- **Description:** Totals by user and coding value combination for the transactions that are not yet ready for export (pending submission, pending approval, pending reconciliation, etc.) as of the date run for the dates and users specified in the input controls.
- Input Controls: From Date, To Date, User
- **Fields:** User Email Address, Card Number, Transaction Amount, Manager/Approver, Manager/Approver Email, Coding segments setup with values coded (if coded)
- Additional Notes: This report contains lines per cardholder and coding. Transactions are summarized by each user and the codings applied. Also includes all transactions that have not been exported.

Expense Approver Detail

- **Description:** A detailed report of cardholders with approved and unapproved expense reports. Use this report to track the status, current assignment, days open, and total amount submitted for all cardholder expense reports.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Approver, Transaction Type
- **Fields:** Cardholder, Card Number, Posting Date, Transaction Date, Merchant, Expense Amount, Expense Description, Coded, Approver, Approved

Expense Approver Summary

- **Description:** Summary of transaction expenses assigned to approvers. The report identifies whether the approver has approved the expense or not.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Approver
- **Fields:** Manager, User Name, User ID, Email Address, Transaction Amount, Transaction Count, Coded, Pending Coded, Approved, Pending Approval

• **Description:** Detailed audit information regarding modifications to the system made by users. Use this report to keep track of system changes by each user for audit purposes.

ExpenseTra

- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Modified by User, Modification Type
- Fields: User Name, User ID, Modification Type, Item Modified, Field Modified, Detail, Date Modified, Time Modified
- Additional Notes: Changes made to a submitted expense report will display as PO instead of the expense report title.

Expense Cost Allocation Summary

- **Description:** A summary of transactions totals by coding string for the filter criteria specified in the input controls. This report runs only at the company level. Use this report to track allocation of expenses to accounting codes.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Coding Type
- Fields: Coding Type, Accounting String, Transaction Count, Average Amount, Total Amount
- Additional Notes: The Excel export does not automatically format columns with exported currency or number fields. Users will need to manually format these columns for the values to display correctly.

Expense Default Coding by Cardholder

- **Description:** A detailed list of all users with default account coding. Use this report to analyze cardholders that have set up a default accounting code for expense items.
- Input Controls: User, Location
- Fields: User Name, Location Code, Employee ID, Code Type, Seg 1, Seg 2, Seg 3, Seg 4, Seg 5

Expense Fuel Usage

- **Description:** A list of all fuel transactions for the filter criteria specified in the input controls. Use this report to track and monitor all fuel-related expenses submitted by your users.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, User, Merchant Name, Merchant State, Vehicle Number

 Fields: Employee ID, Name, Transaction ID, Card Number, Merchant Name, Transaction Date, Post Date, Code, Product Description, Vehicle Number, State, MCC, Quantity, Price, Total, Discount

ExpenseTra

• Additional Notes: The Excel export does not automatically format columns with exported currency or number fields. Users will need to manually format these columns for the values to display correctly.

Expense Location Activity

- **Description:** Summary by location of the amount of transactions and users with activity for the specific date range. Displays active users and total users by location and includes all transactions regardless of status. Use this report to analyze transaction activity by locations in your company.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date
- Fields: Location Group, Location Name, Transaction Count, Total Amount, Average Amount, User with Activity, Active Users, Total Users

Expense Policy Violation Alerts

- **Description:** A list of all transaction with violations for the date range and policy specified in the input controls. Use this report to track users with transactions that are against your company's expense policies.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Policy Name
- **Fields:** Policy Name, Expense Item, Transaction Date, Posting Date, User Name, Card Number, Merchant Category, Merchant Name, Transaction Amount
- Additional Notes: Note the following:
 - This report displays a violation only if a transaction exceeds an amount specified by your company or the mileage is changed on an expense item after it is calculated.
 - The maximum amount must be below zero for the report to pick up a violation.
 - The Card Number field will populate if the transaction originated from a Comdata Corporate Mastercard transaction and will display NULL if the transaction is reimbursable.

Expense Product Tax

- **Description:** A report of all tax collected for each expense. Use this report to view your collected expense taxes for reconciliation purposes.
- Input Controls: Date Type (Posted Date, Transaction Date), Start Date, End Date, User, Merchant Name, Merchant State, Vehicle Number, Location, Location Group, Product Type
- Fields: User Name, Card Number, Employee ID, Merchant Code, Merchant Name, State, Transaction Date, Posted Date, Product Code, Product Description, Quantity, Unit Price, Tax Collected, Tax Total, Discount, Total Amount, Transaction ID, Vehicle ID
- Additional Notes: The Excel export does not automatically format columns with exported currency or number fields.

Expense Spend Analysis by MCC

- Description: An aggregate list of transactions by merchant category code (MCC). This
 report breaks down the amount spent for each MCC by total amount, average
 amount, and percentages of the total amount. A transaction count is also included.
 Use this report to analyze and understand your company's spending by each MCC.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Manager, Users, Merchant Category Code, Locations
- Fields: Merchant Category Code, Amount, Average Amount, Amount Percent of Total, Transaction Count, Percent of Total
- Additional Notes: This report includes all transactions regardless of status. Summarizes amount spent, number of transactions, and averages by MCC and category name. The Excel export does not automatically format columns with exported percentages.

Expense Transaction Coding

- **Description:** All coded transactions for the criteria specified in the input controls.
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, Transaction Type, Transaction Status, User Name, Location, Coding Status, Coding Value Filters (Type1Seg1 Type3Seg5)
- Fields: User Name, Card Number, Transaction Date, Posting Date, Merchant Name, Transaction Amount, Expense Description, Transaction Status, Reviewed Date (date coded), Approver, Approver ID, Approved Date, Exported Date, MCC, MCC Description, Account Code, Customer ID

• Additional Notes: The coding will display to reflect your accounting code configuration setup.

Expense Transaction Detail

• **Description:** A detailed report of transaction data for each expense report. Use this report as a closer view of transaction activity and the status of each transaction.

ExpenseTra

- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, User Name, Item, Transaction Type (Credit, Cash, Both), Location, Location Group, Transaction Status
- Fields: User Name, Card Number, Transaction Date, Posting Date, Merchant Name, Transaction Amount, Expense Description, Transaction Status, Reviewed Date (date coded), Approver, Approver ID, Approved Date, Exported Date, MCC, MCC Description, Account Code, Customer ID

Expense User Information

- **Description:** A detailed list of all users within your instance of Expense Track. Use this report to analyze and track information on all of your users.
- Input Controls: Created Start Date, Created End Date, Manager, Status
- Fields: First Name, Last Name, Employee ID, User ID, User Email Address, Card Number, Location Code, Assigned Groups, Status, Manager Name, Manager Email Address, Create Date, Last Login

Receipt Images Report

- Description: A detailed transaction report that displays each transaction in the selected date range as well as any attached receipt images.
 Note: Do not use this report's previous version, Report with Receipt Images (Deprecated).
- Input Controls: Start Date, End Date, GL Code, Segment 1-15, User IDs, Locations, Location Groups, Field Split Type IDs
- Fields: Request #, Request Type, Expense Title, Purpose, Created For, Employee ID, Expense, Location, Address, Amount, Merchant Name, Merchant Address, Transaction ID, MCC Code, Accounts Coding Type, GL Account, Split Note, Attachment Name

Extract Expense Data

The Data Extract Utility tool allows you to set up scheduled or manual data exports as well as configure scheduled data imports. This action allows you to export expense data back to your accounting system. When a data extract is performed, two major actions occur:

- The requested data is extracted from the Expense Track system database.
- The extracted data is exported in a specified format using a chosen delivery method. This is sometimes also referred to as a report.

Access to the Data Extract Utility tool allows Administrators to manage all configured data exports and imports. Administrators can edit existing exports, test configurations, and add or delete exports.

Note: The following permissions are required for an Administrator to access and perform data extracts:

- 2005 Manage Expense Reports
- 2006 Run Expense Reports

Setting up Exports

Your Comdata account manager can help you determine the type of expenses you want to export. You can set the system to export expenses in one or more of the following statuses:

- Reconciled Expense Reports (default)
- Expense Drafts
- Expense Reports in Approval
- Expense Reports Pending Reconciliation

This feature is beneficial as you don't have to wait for expense reports to reach full approval before exporting them back to your ERP. When expense data is exported in one of these statuses, it is marked within Expense Track as exported. If an expense is marked as exported, but requires additional work (submission, approval, reconciliation, etc.), it can still be processed through the configured workflow, but cannot be exported again.

Note: See the following:

- Using **Expense Drafts** status will export expenses without coding at the time of export. Once the expenses have exported to your ERP, you will need to apply coding to them from within your ERP. To ensure all expenses are coded prior to export, do not use the **Expense Drafts** status.
- This applies to only credit card transactions. Reimbursable expense reports must follow approval and reconciliation before they can be exported.

Running an Extract

Follow the steps below to run a data extract.

 To access the Data Extracts page, select the Settings icon (* *) > System > Data Extracts*.

Ø -	
System	System Settings
Users >	Colors
Payment Information 🕨	Reset System
Vendors >	Import Specifications
Catalog 🔶 🕨	License
Geographic	Manage System Events
Accounting	Data Extract Utility
Other Data 🛛 🕨	Data Extracts *
Expense 🕨	U

2. The Data Extracts page displays with options to run and test each data export. To manually run a data extract, click **Run** next to an extract.

Please find your custom data extracts below. Should you have any questions regarding the extracts please contact the Basware client care team at verian.support@basware.com. Note: Some report queries take too long to complete in the browser, and must be run as a job in the background. If you attempt to Run an extract and receive an error, or know that you are working with a large data extract, choose the option to Run in background. You will receive an email or notification with a link to download when the extract is complete. Extract Type Extract Name Actions AP - SpectrumExportSingleHeader Spectrum Export By Single Header - Template AP - Manual Query 37545 - Pending Reconciliation Tes AP - Manual Query CMiC Export Group By Single Header - Template AP - ViewpointExportEmployeeVendor View Point Export Employee Vendor - Template Run AP - SpectrumExportByTransaction Spectrum Export By Transaction - Template AP - Manual Query Sage Export Group By Transaction - Template

Expense Track Administrator Guide

3. You are prompted to enter optional details related to export (date range, transaction type, etc.). These fields are dependent on the type of data you are extracting and the extract's setup.

Complete each field as necessary and then click one of the run extract options: **Run in browser** or **Run in background**.

37545 - Pending Reconciliation				
Additional Dynamic Filter				
From Posting Date	m			
To Posting Date	#			
Transaction Type	All			
Export from Previous batches Run in browser Run in background	Select existing batch id			
 Note: You are about to run a data extract. All data included in the extract will be marked as Exported, and will not be included in any future extracts. Dynamic Filters will have no effect if you choose to run your report against previous batches. If you encounter errors when running an extract, use Run in Background. You will receive an email or notification to access the file when the extract is complete. 				

• **Run in Browser:** This option runs the data extract as it does today. Once it is complete, the screen refreshes and displays download options for the extract. If the extract contains a large amount of data, this option may cause errors in your browser session.

• ExpenseTrack	M	\geq		Kristen 👻	\equiv
Your report ran successfully and your results are ready for your revi Download report file: Spec_Transaction_CC_20181024_03520507.txt Download report file: Spec_Transaction_RE_20181024_03520511.txt File scheduled to upload to the FTP site within 15 minutes: Spec_Transac File scheduled to upload to the FTP site within 15 minutes: Spec_Transac	tion_CC_20	-	-		

• **Run in Background:** This option creates a background batch job for the data extract. When the extract is complete, you will be notified via email or the Messages tool in Expense Track. The success message will also provide a link to track the progress of the job. This option is useful as it prevents extracts with large amounts of data from interrupting your browser session.

Successfully created scheduled job to run your extract in background. You will receive an email or notification to access the file when the extract is complete. You may navigate to job queue 1155 to track the progress on this job.

4. To test a data extract, click **Test*** next to an extract. Testing a data extract ensures it will run as expected without actually removing any data from the Expense Track system.

Please find your custom data extracts below. Should you have any questions regarding the extracts please contact the Basware client care team at verian.support@basware.com. Note: Some report queries take too long to complete in the browser, and must be run as a job in the background. If you attempt to Run an extract and receive an error, or know that you are working with a large data extract, choose the option to Run in background . You will receive an email or notification with a link to download when the extract is complete.					
Extract Type	Extract Name	Actions			
AP - SpectrumExportSingleHeader	Spectrum Export By Single Header - Template	Run Test*			
AP - Manual Query	37545 - Pending Reconciliation	Run Test*			
AP - Manual Query	CMIC Export Group By Single Header - Template	Run Test*			
AP - ViewpointExportEmployeeVendor	View Point Export Employee Vendor - Template	Run Test*			
AP - SpectrumExportByTransaction	Spectrum Export By Transaction - Template	Run Test*			
AP - Manual Query	Sage Export Group By Transaction - Template	Run Test*			

As with the normal Data Extract, you are prompted to complete optional fields that vary depending on the type of extract. Complete the fields as necessary and click Test.
 Note: Test extracts run only in your browser. You cannot select to run them in the background.

(see image on next page)

Expense Track Administrator Guide

Spectrum Export By Transaction - Template			
Input Field	Value		
Schedule Type	Manual T		
Invoice Date	2001-01-01		
Batch Code			
Routing Code			
Additional Dynamic Filter			
From Posting Date	#		
To Posting Date	#		
Transaction Type	All		
Export from Previous batches	Select existing batch id		
Test			
 Note: Dynamic Filters will have no effect if you choose to run your report against previous batches. 			

Once the test is complete, a screen displays with links to download your extracted data.

Your report ran successfully and your results are ready for your review.

- Download report file: Spec_Export_CC_20181106_070322383.txt
- Download report file: Spec_Export_RE_20181106_070322388.txt